
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Sharon Hughes 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864281   Ebost: hughesj@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 15 Medi 2021 

 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam,  
 
Bydd cyfarfod o’r  Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd Mawrth, 
21ain Medi, 2021 am 5.30 pm i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  Gall cynghorwyr a'r 
cyhoedd sy'n dymuno siarad am unrhyw eitem wneud hynny drwy wneud cais i'r Cadeirydd. Mae croeso i 
chi ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny. 
 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr ymddwyn 
gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y gofynnir i chi adael 
y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a gynhaliwyd ar 29 Mehefin 2021. 

1 - 6 
 

4  Ystyried unrhyw fater a gyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor hwn yn unol â'r drefn galw i mewn. 
 

 
5  Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg. 

 
7 - 18 

 
6  I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau* Cabinet canlynol:-   

 
1. Compendiwm Cynhwysiant – 21ain Gorffennaf 2021; 
2. Strategaeth NEET – 21ain Gorffennaf 2021. 

 
* Os oes aelod o’r Pwyllgor Craffu yn dymuno i unrhyw un o'r adroddiadau Cabinet uchod i gael eu 
dwyn ymlaen ar gyfer adolygiad yn y cyfarfod, cysylltwch â Sharon Hughes, 01443 864281, erbyn 
10.00 a.m. ar Dydd Llun, 20fed Medi 2021. 
 
 
I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiadau Craffu canlynol:- 
 
7  Dychwelyd i'r Ysgol Medi 2021 - Cyflwyniad. 

19 - 34 
 

8  Rhaglen Ysgolion a Cholegau ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif Band B - Diweddariad ar Gam 2. 
35 - 42 

 
9  Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol. 

43 - 50 
 

10  Asesiad Perfformiad y Gyfadran – Cymunedau – Adroddiad Diwedd Blwyddyn 2020/21. 
51 - 74 

 
 
 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Mrs E.M. Aldworth, C. Andrews (Is Gadeirydd), P.J. Bevan, A. Collis, W. David, A. Farina-
Childs, Mrs J. Stone, D.T. Hardacre, D. Havard, M.P. James, Mrs B. A. Jones, B. Miles, Mrs G.D. Oliver, 
Mrs T. Parry (Cadeirydd), J.E. Roberts a J. Simmonds 
 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig: 
 
Cynrychiolwyr Archesgobaeth ROC Caerdydd dros Addysg (gyda hawliau pleidleisio ar faterion 
addysgol) 
Mr M. Western 
 
Cynrychiolwyr Rhiant Lywodraethwyr (gyda hawliau pleidleisio ar faterion addysgol) G. James 
(Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-lywodraethwr) a Tracy Millington (Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-lywodraethwr) 
 
Cynrychiolwyr Cyrff Allanol (heb hawliau pleidleisio) 
Mrs J. Havard (NEU) a Mrs P. Ireland (NEU) 
 



Asiantaeth Llywodraethwyr Caerffili (heb hawliau pleidleisio) 
Mr D Davies 
 
A Swyddogion Priodol 
 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
 
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD O BELL A GYNHALIWYD DROS MICROSOFT TEAMS AR 
DDYDD MAWRTH, 29 MEHEFIN 2021 AM 5.30PM 

 
YN BRESENNOL: 

 
Y Cynghorydd T. Parry - Cadeirydd 

Cynghorydd C. Andrews - Is-gadeirydd 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

E.M. Aldworth, P. J. Bevan, A. Collis, W. David, A. Farina-Childs, Ms J. Gale, B. Miles,   
J. Roberts a J. Simmonds.  

 
R. Whiting (Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden).  

 
Ynghyd a: 

 
Swyddogion:  R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol), S. Richards (Pennaeth Cynllunio a Strategaeth Addysg), P. Warren 
(Arweinydd Strategol ar gyfer Gwella Ysgolion), S. Ellis (Arweinydd Cynhwysiant ac ADY), J. 
Southcombe (Rheolwr Cyllid),  
J. Kent (Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg), E. Pryce (Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg), M. Jacques 
(Swyddog Craffu), S. Hughes (Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor) a J. Lloyd (Swyddog 
Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor). 

  
Hefyd yn bresennol:  

 
Aelodau Cyfetholedig:  Mr M. Western (Cynrychiolydd Comisiwn Addysg Archesgobaeth 
Eglwys Uniongred Rwsia Caerdydd ), Mrs T. Millington (Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwyr) 
a Mr G. James (Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwyr)  

 
   

TREFNIADAU RECORDIO  
 

Atgoffodd y Cadeirydd y rhai a oedd yn bresennol fod y cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio ac y 
byddai ar gael i'w gweld drwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.   Cliciwch yma i’w weld 

    
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU DROS ABSENOLDEB 
 

Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb oddi wrth y Cynghorwyr D. T. Hardacre, D. Havard, 
M. P. James, Mrs B. A. Jones, Mrs G. D. Oliver a Mr D. Davies (Cymdeithas Llywodraethwyr 
Caerffili). 

 
 
2. DATGANIAD O FUDDIANNAU 
 

Ni chafodd unrhyw ddatganiadau o fuddiannau eu derbyn ar ddechrau neu yn ystod y cyfarfod. 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Meetings,-agendas,-minutes-and-reports/Council-meetings?lang=cy-gb


 

 
3. COFNODION – 17 MAI 2021 
 

PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a 
gynhaliwyd ar 17 Mai 2021 (cofnodion rhif 1-8) fel cofnod cywir a'u llofnodi gan y 
Cadeirydd. 
 
 

4. I YSTYRIED UNRHYW FATER A GYFEIRIWYD AT Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU YN UNOL Â'R 
WEITHDREFN GALW I MEWN 

 
 Ni fu unrhyw fater a gyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor Craffu yn unol â'r weithdrefn galw i mewn. 
 
 
5. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU DYSGU GYDOL OES  
 

Rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i'r adroddiad a oedd yn amlinellu manylion Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor 
Craffu Addysg ar gyfer y cyfnod rhwng Mehefin 2021 a Mawrth 2022 ac roedd yn cynnwys yr 
holl adroddiadau a nodwyd yng nghyfarfod y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a gynhaliwyd ddydd Llun 
17 Mai 2021.  Gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau ystyried y Flaenraglen Waith, ochr yn ochr â 
Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet, cyn ei chyhoeddi ar wefan y Cyngor.  
 
Cynigiwyd y dylid ychwanegu'r ddwy eitem ganlynol at Flaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor Craffu 
Addysg:  

 
(i) Adroddiad ar y gyfradd ymateb gan ysgolion pan ofynnwyd am gyflwyno 

adroddiadau i Baneli Maeth.  
 
(ii) Adroddiad diweddaru rheolaidd ar Gwricwlwm Newydd Cymru.   Cafwyd cais 

hefyd i wahodd Penaethiaid i roi tystiolaeth i'r Pwyllgor Craffu. 
 

Ar ôl ystyried yr adroddiad, ac yn amodol ar yr adroddiadau ychwanegol a gynigiwyd, fe'i 
symudwyd a'i heiliwyd y dylid cymeradwyo'r argymhellion.  Trwy ddefnydd pleidlais Microsoft 
Forms, cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg yn cael ei 
chyhoeddi ar wefan y Cyngor. 
 

 
6. ADRODDIADAU CABINET 
 
 Ni fu unrhyw adroddiad Cabinet a restrwyd ar yr agenda eu galw ymlaen i'w trafod yn y cyfarfod. 
 
 

ADRODDIADAU GAN SWYDDOGION 
 
 Ystyriwyd yr adroddiadau canlynol. 
 
 
7. COMPENDIWM CYNHWYSIANT  
 

Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden yr adroddiad i ymgynghori ag Aelodau 
ar y Compendiwm Cynhwysiant newydd a gofyn am eu barn cyn i'r Cabinet ei ystyried.    
 
Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau bod yr adroddiad yn ymwneud â'r Compendiwm Cynhwysiant, 
sy'n cynnwys y Strategaeth Cynhwysiant yn ogystal ag ystod o ganllawiau a dogfennau 
annibynnol sy'n sail i'r strategaeth, ac sydd i'w defnyddio gan ysgolion, rhieni, Llywodraethwyr, 
Cynghorwyr a phartneriaid i helpu i'w weithredu a'i deall. 

Page 2



 

 
Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Aelodau bod y Strategaeth Gynhwysiant yn 'Strategaeth Wahardd' yn 
flaenorol, ond teimlwyd bod canolbwyntio ar 'waharddiadau' yn rhoi’r pwyslais anghywir.  Dyna 
pam y mae'r strategaeth hon yn canolbwyntio ar gynhwysiant, mae'n ymwneud â sicrhau bod 
cymaint â phosibl yn cael ei wneud i sicrhau bod pobl ifanc yn aros mewn addysg, a dim ond i 
ddefnyddio gwaharddiadau lle bo hynny'n gwbl angenrheidiol.   Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau bod y 
Strategaeth yn cynnwys meithrin perthynas â phartneriaid fel ysgolion, y Gwasanaeth 
Ieuenctid, y Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg (GCA), Gwasanaethau Lles Addysg, 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ac eraill er mwyn sicrhau bod unrhyw faterion a allai ddatblygu 
yn cael eu nodi'n gynnar, a bod cymorth yn cael ei ddarparu.  Tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith bod 
monitro a hunanarfarnu wedi'u cynnwys yn y Strategaeth a'r Compendiwm er mwyn sicrhau y 
gellir casglu a gwerthuso data.  Mynegodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden diolch i'r 
Arweinydd Strategol ar gyfer Gwella Ysgolion a'i thîm.  Rhannodd yr Arweinydd Cynhwysiant 
ac ADY gyflwyniad gyda'r Pwyllgor Craffu ar y Compendiwm Cynhwysiant.  
 
Croesawodd Aelod y Strategaeth ond amlinellodd bryderon ynghylch y ffordd y mae ysgolion 
yn rheoli plant sydd ag ymddygiad heriol.  Teimlwyd y gall eu heriau gael effaith aflonyddgar 
ar blant eraill sy'n dysgu yn yr un amgylchedd.   Pwysleisiodd yr Aelod bwysigrwydd cael 
cymorth ariannol digonol i ysgolion er mwyn gweithredu'r Strategaeth Cynhwysiant.   
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd Cynhwysiant ac ADY nad oedd ateb cyflym.   Clywodd yr Aelodau 
sut yr oedd angen newid diwylliannol a sut y rhoddwyd pwyslais ar ymyrraeth gynnar ac 
ymgysylltu â phartneriaid.   Tynnodd un Aelod, sy'n Llywodraethwr Ysgol, sylw at y gwaith da 
sy'n cael ei wneud yn Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni ym maes cynhwysiant.   

 
Nododd y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg gynnwys yr adroddiad a rhoddodd eu barn fel rhan o'r broses 
ymgynghori.  

 
8. STRATEGAETH NID MEWN ADDYSG, CYFLOGAETH NA HYFFORDDIANT 
 

Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden yr adroddiad i ymgynghori ag Aelodau 
ar y Strategaeth Ymgysylltu a Datblygu (Nid mewn Addysg, Cyflogaeth na Hyfforddiant) 
newydd a materion cysylltiedig, a gofyn am eu barn cyn i'r Cabinet ei ystyried. 
 
Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau bod y Strategaeth Ymgysylltu a Datblygu (Nid mewn Addysg, 
Cyflogaeth na Hyfforddiant) yn anelu at nodi trefniadau a bwriadau'r Cyngor i sicrhau bod pobl 
ifanc yn gallu symud ymlaen yn gadarnhaol i addysg, cyflogaeth neu hyfforddiant ôl-16.  
Tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith bod y strategaeth hon yn cynnwys alinio strategaeth y Cyngor â 
chanllawiau lleol a chenedlaethol eraill, gan gynnwys y chwe blaenoriaeth a geir yn 
Fframwaith Ymgysylltu a Datblygu Cenedlaethol Llywodraeth Cymru, sydd i'w gweld o dan 
adran 5.4 o'r adroddiad.  Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau ei fod yn cynnwys dull gweithredu ar y 
cyd ar draws y gwahanol sefydliadau partner perthnasol i ddatblygu dealltwriaeth graff o pam 
nad yw pobl ifanc mewn Addysg, Cyflogaeth na Hyfforddiant neu a allai ddod felly, a'r 
canlyniadau.  Mae'n nodi rolau a chyfrifoldebau amrywiol rhanddeiliaid y tu mewn a'r tu allan 
i'r Awdurdod Lleol, a phwyslais ar gydweithredu a gweithio mewn partneriaeth.  Mynegodd yr 
Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden ddiolch i'r Arweinydd Strategol ar gyfer Gwella 
Ysgolion a Rheolwr y Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid. 
 
Amlygodd yr Arweinydd Strategol ar gyfer Gwella Ysgolion fod y ddogfen yn cydnabod 
amrywiaeth o wendidau a all gyfrannu at ddisgybl yn wynebu risg o fod y tu allan i Addysg, 
Cyflogaeth a Hyfforddiant ac yn manylu ar ddull hyblyg o sicrhau bod y llwybr at lwyddiant yn 
iawn. 
 
Gofynnwyd cwestiwn ynghylch a ddarganfuwyd mwy o broblemau ymddygiad wrth 
drosglwyddo i Ysgolion Cyfun ai peidio.   Amlinellodd yr Arweinydd Strategol ar gyfer Gwella 
Ysgolion sut y gall pontio fod yn gyfnod heriol i ddisgyblion.   Clywodd yr Aelodau sut yr oedd 
rôl i ysgolion o ran cynnig cymorth yn y maes hwn a sicrhau bod y sgiliau cywir yn cael eu 
datblygu er mwyn osgoi disgyblion rhag bod mewn perygl o fod y tu allan i Addysg, Cyflogaeth 
a Hyfforddiant.       

Page 3



 

 
Nododd y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg gynnwys yr adroddiad a rhoddodd eu barn fel rhan o'r broses 
ymgynghori.  

 
 
9. CYTUNDEBAU LEFEL GWASANAETH 
 

Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden yr adroddiad i roi trosolwg i'r Aelodau 
o'r Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth (CLGau) sydd ar gael i ysgolion a manylion am lefel y 
pryniant ar gyfer gwasanaethau mewnol yr Awdurdod, yn dilyn cais gan yr Aelodau am y 
wybodaeth hon. 
 
Tynnwyd sylw at y ffaith bod ystod eang o wasanaethau ar gael i ysgolion drwy drefniant 
CLGau, y manylir arnynt o dan adran 5.1 o'r adroddiad a hefyd wedi'i gynnwys yn yr 
atodiadau.  Dywedwyd wrth yr Aelodau fod ysgolion yn penderfynu a ydynt am brynu’r rhain 
pob blwyddyn ariannol.  Yn y broses hon, gallant godi ymholiadau ac adolygu eu trefniadau.   
Hysbyswyd yr Aelodau bod ysgolion yn 2020/2021 wedi talu gwerth £2.4 miliwn am y cymorth 
a ddarparwyd yn rhai o'r CLGau hyn, ac mewn llawer o achosion mae lefel y pryniant ar 
100%, a chyfeiriwyd at y dadansoddiad o hyn o dan atodiad 4 yr adroddiad.  Dywedwyd wrth 
yr Aelodau fod y lefel hon o brynu yn rhagorol ac, ynghyd â'r cyfleoedd rheolaidd i ysgolion 
adolygu ac adborth ar wasanaethau, yn awgrymu eu bod yn llwyddiannus.   Cyhoeddir 
cytundebau'n flynyddol a rhaid i wasanaethau barhau i ymateb i ddiwallu anghenion ysgolion 
er mwyn sicrhau bod y lefel hon o gymorth ar gyfer ein gwasanaethau mewnol yn parhau. 
 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynglŷn â'r gronfa galedi COVID-19, hysbysodd y Rheolwr Cyllid yr 
Aelodau mai'r cyhoeddiad gan Lywodraeth Cymru yw y bydd yn parhau hyd at ddiwedd mis 
Medi, a bod trafodaeth bellach yn mynd rhagddo gydag awdurdodau lleol a thrysoryddion, ond 
mae lefel o ansicrwydd ar ôl mis Medi. 

 
Nododd y Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg cynnwys yr adroddiad.  

 
 

10. GWEITHREDU CWRICWLWM NEWYDD I GYMRU  
 
Cyflwynodd yr Aelod Cabinet dros Ddysgu a Hamdden yr adroddiad ac yna trosglwyddodd i 
Gyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol y GCA i roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Aelodau am Weithredu 
Cwricwlwm i Gymru, yng nghyd-destun Pandemig COVID-19.  Esboniwyd cynllun Fframwaith 
Cwricwlwm Cymru i'r Pwyllgor Craffu.   Amlinellwyd dilyniant ac asesu yn Fframwaith ac 
asesu Cwricwlwm Cymru fel rhan o werthuso a gwella i'r Aelodau.  

 
Cododd Aelod bryderon ynghylch y ddarpariaeth Gymraeg os yw'r fframwaith newydd yn rhoi 
mwy o hunanreolaeth a hyblygrwydd i ysgolion o ran y cwricwlwm.   Dywedodd Cyfarwyddwr 
Cynorthwyol y GCA wrth yr Aelodau fod y Gymraeg yn elfen orfodol o dan fframwaith y 
cwricwlwm ac felly ystyriwyd ei bod yn cryfhau'r iaith mewn ysgolion.    

 
Gofynnwyd am eglurhad a gwybodaeth bellach o ran asesu a gwerthuso.   Tynnwyd sylw at y 
ffaith na fyddai gwybodaeth asesu dysgwyr yn cael ei defnyddio at ddibenion atebolrwydd a 
chodwyd cwestiwn ynghylch sut y bydd yr awdurdod lleol yn asesu a yw disgyblion yn 
datblygu a pha wybodaeth y dylid ei defnyddio i werthuso perfformiad ysgolion.   Amlinellodd 
Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol y GCA (Polisi a Strategaeth) yn amlinellu sut y byddai hyn yn her ar 
y cyd i'r holl bartneriaid, ac esboniodd sut y bwriadwyd defnyddio data ansoddol mwy meddal.  
Clywodd yr Aelodau sut yr oedd ansawdd arweinyddiaeth ysgolion o'r pwys mwyaf yn hyn o 
beth. 

 
Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn a fyddai ESTYN yn cymryd rôl amlycach yn y dyfodol, nododd 
Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol y GCA (Polisi a Strategaeth) nad oedd Fframwaith ESTYN wedi 
newid ar hyn o bryd.  Clywodd yr Aelodau sut y defnyddiwyd data a safonau caled yn bennaf 

Page 4



 

o dan fframweithiau blaenorol, ond o dan yr asesiad fframwaith presennol roedd yn seiliedig 
mwy ar ansawdd y gwaith yn llyfrau disgyblion a'r cynnydd a ddangoswyd ar eu taith.  
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 6.39 p.m. 

 
 Cymeradwywyd fel cofnod cywir, ac yn amodol ar unrhyw ddiwygiadau neu gywiriadau y 

cytunwyd arnynt ac a gofnodwyd yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 21 Medi 2021, 
fe'u llofnodwyd gan y Cadeirydd. 

 
 

_______________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

 

Page 5



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 6



 
 
 

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
21ST SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT: EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME  

 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES 

 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To report the Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme.   
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Forward Work Programmes are essential to ensure that Scrutiny Committee agendas 

reflect the strategic issues facing the Council and other priorities raised by Members, 
the public or stakeholder. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 That Members consider any changes and agree the final forward work programme 

prior to publication. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To improve the operation of scrutiny. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Education Scrutiny Committee forward work programme includes all reports that 

were identified at the scrutiny committee meeting on Tuesday 29th June 2021.   The 
work programme outlines the reports planned for the period September 2021 to 
March 2022. 

 
5.2 The forward Work Programme is made up of reports identified by officers and 

members.  Members are asked to consider the work programme alongside the 
cabinet work programme and suggest any changes before it is published on the 

Page 7

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



council website.  Scrutiny committee will review this work programme at every 
meeting going forward alongside any changes to the cabinet work programme or 
report requests.  

 
5.3 The Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme is attached at 

Appendix 1, which presents the current status as at 1st September 2021. The Cabinet 
Work Programme is attached at Appendix 2. A copy of the prioritisation flowchart is 
attached at appendix 3 to assist the scrutiny committee to determine what items 
should be added to the forward work programme. 

 
 

5.4 Conclusion   

The work programme is for consideration and amendment by the scrutiny committee 

prior to publication on the council website.   

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 No assumptions are necessary.     

 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 As this report is for information only an Integrated Impact Assessment is not 

necessary.  
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no specific financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no specific personnel implications arising as a result of this report.  
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been included in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 The Local Government Act 2000.  
 
 
 
Author:        Mark Jacques, Scrutiny Officer jacqum@carphilly.gov.uk  
 
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director for Education and Corporate 

Services 
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 

Page 8



 Robert Tranter, Head of Legal Services/ Monitoring Officer 
 Lisa Lane, Head of Democratic Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, 

Legal Services 
 Councillor Teresa Parry Chair Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Education Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme  
Appendix 2 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
Appendix 3 Forward Work Programme Prioritisation Flowchart 
 
 

Page 9



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 10



                                                                                                                                                                  Forward Work Programme - Education APPENDIX 1

Date Title Key Issues Author Cabinet Member

21/09/21 17:30 Directorate Performance Assessment ((incl FP/KS3) Edmunds, Richard (Ed); Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

21/09/21 17:30 21st Century Schools – Band B Programme Update
To provide Cabinet with an update on the progress of the 21st 

Century Schools Band B programme.- Phase 1 & 2.
West, Andrea; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

21/09/21 17:30 Return to school Cole, Keri; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

21/09/21 17:30 ALN Update Cole, Keri; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

21/09/21 17:30 Information Item - Examples of Support for Wellbeing during the Pandemic

To share information with members with information regarding the 

role of services and the support available for the wellbeing and 

mental health of children in Caerphilly during and the pandemic.

Ellis, Sarah; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

21/09/21 17:30 Information Item - Budget Monitoring  2020-21 Period 3 Southcombe, Jane; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

02/11/21 17:30 Additional Support
Consultation report for Members regarding delegation of additional 

support
Ellis, Sarah; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

02/11/21 17:30 Youth Service Pilot Update Warren, Paul; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

02/11/21 17:30 Welsh Education Strategic Plan 2022-2032 For Cabinet to cosider and approve the new 10 year plan Cole, Keri; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

02/11/21 17:30 21st Century Schools – Band B Update - Phase 2: Consultation 

For Members to give their views on any proposals subject to 

consultation as statutory consultees prescribed by the School 

Organisation Code 2018 

West, Andrea; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

02/12/21 17:30 Vocational Offer Richards, Sue; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

10/01/22 17:30 Self Evaluation Update Warren, Paul; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

10/01/22 17:30 21st Century Schools – Band B - Phase 2: Consultation Report / Statutory Notice 

For Members to consider the contents of 21st Century Schools 

consultation report prior to determination to proceed to Statutory 

Notice by Cabinet in December 2021.

West, Andrea; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

15/02/22 17:30 Directorate Performance Assessment (incl KS4/5) Edmunds, Richard (Ed); Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

15/02/22 17:30 EAS Business Plan 2022-2023 Cole, Keri; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

15/02/22 17:30 Information - WESP Annual report Mutch, Sarah; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

29/03/22 17:30 21st Century Schools – Band B - Phase 2: Objection Report
For Members to consider the contents of 21st Century Schools 

objection report prior to determination by Cabinet in April 2022.
West, Andrea; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

29/03/22 17:30 Information - Education Capital Programme 2022/2023 To ensure Members are updated in relation to proposed spend. West, Andrea; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

29/03/22 17:30 Information - Proposed Admission Arrangements 2023/24

Scrutiny members are asked to consider the proposed arrangements 

and provide any relevant comments as part of the consultation 

process.

Strathdee, Emma J.; Cllr. Whiting, Ross;

P
age 11



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 12



Cabinet Forward Work Programme from 29th September 2021       APPENDIX 2 

         29/09/2021 10:30 Workforce Development 
Strategy 

To seek Cabinet approval of the Workforce 
Development Strategy 2021 - 24 

Donovan, Lynne; Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Well-Being Strategy 2021 - 24 To seek Cabinet approval of the Wellbeing 
Strategy 2021 - 24 

Donovan, Lynne; Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Montclaire Avenue - Culvert 
Report 

To seek Cabinet approval to fund the culvert 
repair. 

Street, Dave; Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Car parking at Twyn Car Park and 
Blackwood High Street Car Park 

To consider proposals to manage the 
interface between business/visitor parking at 
Twyn Car Park, Caerphilly and Blackwood High 
Street. 
  

Williams, Mark S; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Supplementary report - 
Managing Service Risk at Alert 
Level Zero 

To update Cabinet with a further report 
detailing proposals for the re-opening of key 
buildings 

Edmunds, Richard (Ed); Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

29/09/2021 10:30 Christmas closedown To consider Christmas closedown 
arrangements. 

Donovan, Lynne; 
Edmunds, Richard (Ed) 

Cllr. Gordon, Colin J; 

13/10/2021 10:30 21st Century Schools – Band B 
Programme Update 

To provide Cabinet with an update on the 
progress of the 21st Century Schools Band B 
programme.- Phase 1 & 2. 

West, Andrea; 
Richards, Sue; 

Cllr. Whiting, Ross; 

13/10/2021 10:30 Streetlighting Update To provide Cabinet with an interim update on 
the monitoring of the street lighting carbon 
reduction initiative outcomes. 

Lloyd, Marcus; Cllr. Pritchard, James; 

13/10/2021 14:00 New Respite Facilities  To seek Cabinet approval to build two state of 
the art respite facilities, one for adults and 
one for children in order to replace existing 
facilities. 

Street, Dave; Williams, 
Jo; 

Cllr. Cook, Shayne; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Corporate Performance 
Assessments (CPA's) 

To provide Cabinet with information and 
detailed analysis of performance for the 
period 01/04/20 to 31/03/21 and forms part 
of the Council's self-assessment activity. 

Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

P
age 13



Cabinet Forward Work Programme from 29th September 2021       APPENDIX 2 

27/10/2021 10:30 Local Housing Strategy To seek Cabinet approval for the acquisition 
of the former Oakdale School site from the 
General Fund to the HRA and the 
development of the site by Willmott Dixon on 
behalf of Caerphilly Homes. 

Roberts-Waite, Jane; Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Oakdale Housing  Development For Cabinet to consider the development 
options presented by Willmott Dixon on 
behalf of Caerphilly Homes, on the basis of 
need and viability with regard to the site of 
the former Oakdale Comprehensive School.  

Roberts-Waite, Jane; Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

27/10/2021 10:30 Annual Performance Report and 
Corporate Plan 2018-2023 

For Cabinet to consider the Council's Annual 
Performance Report which provides 
information and analysis of performance 
against the six well-being objectives for the 
period 01/04/20 to 31/03/21. 

Roberts, Ros; Richards, 
Sue; 

Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

10/11/2021 10:30 Commercial & Investment 
Strategy 

For Cabinet to note the progress made 
against the actions and success measures 
within the strategy during the first 12 months 
To seek an extension of an additional 12 
months for the refresh of the Commercial & 
Investment Strategy to November 2022. 
  

Camp, Victoria; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

10/11/2021 10:30 Homeless Project Plan To provide Cabinet with the Rapid Rehousing 
and transitional plan which needs to be 
submitted to WG by June 2022. 
  

Denman, Kerry; Street, 
Dave; 

Cllr. Phipps, Lisa; 

P
age 14



Cabinet Forward Work Programme from 29th September 2021       APPENDIX 2 

10/11/2021 10:30 Dog Control PSPO Proposals To consider the outcome of a public 
consultation, together with any 
recommendations from Scrutiny Committee, 
on proposals to amend and extend the Public 
Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) relating to 
dog control to include the exclusion of dogs 
from marked sports pitches/areas 

Hartshorn, Robert; Cllr. George, Nigel; 

10/11/2021 10:30 ASB/street drinking PSPO  To consider the outcome of a public 
consultation together, with any 
recommendations from Scrutiny Committee, 
on proposals to vary and extend the Public 
Spaces Protection Orders relating to anti-
social behaviour and drinking alcohol in a 
public place 

Hartshorn, Robert; Cllr. George, Nigel; 

24/11/2021 10:30 Team Caerphilly Transformation 
Programme – 6 monthly update 

To provide Cabinet with an update on 
progress against the Team Caerphilly 
Transformation Strategy 
  

Richards, Sue; Cllr. Stenner, Eluned; 

24/11/2021 10:30 Grass Cutting Regime To seek the views of Cabinet in relation to 
grass cutting regimes across the county 
borough and proposals to enhance and 
promote bio-diversity following consultation 
with local members and presentation to 
Scrutiny Committee. 
  

Hartshorn, Robert; Cllr. Whitcombe, Andrew; 

P
age 15



Cabinet Forward Work Programme from 29th September 2021       APPENDIX 2 

24/11/2021 10:30 The principles of a regional 
approach to Employability 
Programme 

To consider a regional approach to the 
provision of employment support 
programmes within the Cardiff Capital 
Region. 
 
  

Kyte, Rhian; Cllr. Marsden, Philippa; 

 

P
age 16



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 
APPENDIX 3 

 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMMES 
APPENDIX 3 

Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme Prioritisation 

          

 

 

                      

 

            

         

            

            

            

               

 

            

            

               

            

                 

            

            

               

                  

            

            

            

            

         

 

  

Is the issue of strategic 

importance? 

There is concern of poor 

performance or a significant 

budgetary issue has been 

identified 

Issue identified as corporate 

priority or identified as 

service or corporate risk 

 

Is the topic timely? Will 

scrutiny be able to make 

recommendations? 

Suitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

No 

Suitable as Task and Finish 

group review 

Unsuitable for Scrutiny 

Forward Work 

Programme 

No 

Issue highlighted by an 

Auditor, Regulator or 

Inspector, which identified 

areas for improvement or 

concern. 

No 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Yes 

 

Change to Legislation or 

Guidance 
No 

Evidence of public 

dissatisfaction (e.g. Public 

Satisfaction Survey)  
Yes 

 

No 

No Yes 

 

Page 17



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 18



Return to school
September 2021P

age 19

E
item

 A
r Y

r A
genda 7



Context
• Schools closure announced Wednesday, 18th March, 

2020 for Friday, 20th March.
• FSM strategy agreed and implemented.
• Approximately 1,000 applications for childcare for key 

workers processed on Saturday 21st and Sunday 22nd 
March.

• 6 mainstream hubs and 1 ALN base established 
Monday, 23rd March.

P
age 20



Context

• 4 mainstream additional hubs and 2 vulnerable pupil 
hubs.

• Over 1,700 staff contributed.

P
age 21



July 2020
• Schools re-opened on Monday, 29th June, 2020, in 

order to check in, catch up and prepare  -  maximum 
of 1/3rd capacity.

• Risk Assessments (RAs) were completed for all 
school sites and staff and pupils who are vulnerable.

• LA guidance was issued.
• Weekly meetings with headteachers continued.

P
age 22



September – December 2020

• Local lockdown in Caerphilly CBC in early September.

• Revised Risk Assessments, in conjunction with LA support.

• FSM deliveries continued throughout the term for all those eligible 

until 30th September and then for those self isolating throughout.

P
age 23



September – December 2020
• Welsh Government directed secondary pupils to learn remotely from 

11th December.

• LA decision for primary schools to learn remotely from Thursday, 17 th 

December.  LA to provide provision for vulnerable pupils and key 

workers where needed.

• TTP process very demanding for senior leaders, supported by LA 

staff.

P
age 24



January 2021 – April 2021
• National lockdown – 4th January, 2021

• On site learning resumed as follows :
• Foundation phase pupils - 22nd February, 2021
• Pupils in years 7-9  - 15th March.
• Pupils in years 10-13  -  12th April. 

• Provision for children of key workers and vulnerable pupils on 

school site throughout.
.

P
age 25



April 2021 – July 2021

• Completion of statutory testing and Centre Determined Grades 

process.

• Several outbreaks of positive cases, resulting in high number of 

pupils and staff required to self isolate.

• Preparation for return in September 2021.

.

P
age 26



July 2021 – August 2021

• Ongoing work for the Core Guidance for schools to be published in 

August.

• Core Guidance will replace Operational Guidance after a period of 

transition in the autumn term.

.

P
age 27



What have been the successes in 2020-21?

• Excellent working relationships between LA and schools, leading to 
extensive and effective collaboration.

• Highly valued support from all LA staff teams and services, including 
the newly established headteacher helpline.

• FSM delivery programme.

• All schools remained open despite very high numbers of pupils/staff 
self isolating.

P
age 28



What have been the most challenging aspects of
2020-21 for schools ?

• Keeping everyone safe by reviewing, communicating and embedding risk 
assessment regularly throughout the school year.

• Managing messages for pupils, staff, governors and parents/carers – 
particularly when rules changed and/or when they differed from England.

• Managing the spectrum of attitudes to Covid – from extreme anxiety to non-
compliance with any mitigation.

• Coping with the workload involved in the ever-changing demand for reactive 
practice and, in particular, out of hours work in identifying and contacting 
close contact.

P
age 29



September 2021 onwards - What will be different?

• No recommendation for bubbles, contact groups.

• No recommendation for face coverings in classrooms.

• Unless testing positive, no-one under 18, nor those fully vaccinated, 
will be required to self isolate.

• No-one fully vaccinated will be required to self isolate.

• Close contacts will receive a “warn and inform” notification.

P
age 30



What challenges remain ?

• Embedding the new decision-making framework in the Autumn Term.

• Supporting those most anxious in the school community, to adjust to 
the new situation.

• Embedding the identification and contacting of close contacts.

• Supporting all pupils/staff in wellbeing and learning going forward.

P
age 31



Related Links
(latest guidance)

Public Health Wales
https://phw.nhs.wales/topics/latest-information-on-novel-
coronavirus-covid-19
Welsh Government
https://gov.wales/coronavirus 

P
age 32

https://phw.nhs.wales/topics/latest-information-on-novel-coronavirus-covid-19
https://phw.nhs.wales/topics/latest-information-on-novel-coronavirus-covid-19
https://gov.wales/coronavirus


Questions

P
age 33



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 34



 
 
 

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
21ST SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT: 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES BAND B 
PROGRAMME - UPDATE ON PHASE 2 

 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to update Members on the 21st Century Schools and 

Colleges Band B Phase 2 programme and to seek Members’ endorsement of a 
recommendation to Cabinet to proceed to consultation in respect of the phase 2 
projects which includes the amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior and Llanfabon 
Infants School, a new replacement Plasyfelin Primary School and the establishment 
of a new Centre for Vulnerable Learners (Pupil Referral Unit). 

 
1.2 Members are also asked to endorse a recommendation to Cabinet that £4.716m is 
 set aside from the Authority’s Place-Shaping Reserve in respect of the Authority’s 
 financial contribution to Phase 2 of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Band B 
 programme.  
 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report provides an update to Members on the current position of Phase 2 of the 

Band B 21st Century School and Colleges Capital Programme. 
 
2.2 The schemes identified for Phase 2 of the Band B programme are: 
 

 The amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior School and Llanfabon Infants School 

to create a new Primary School provision  

 A new replacement Plasyfelin Primary School on the existing site 

 The establishment of a Centre for Vulnerable Pupils (Pupil Referral Unit) on the 

former Pontllanfraith Comprehensive site 

2.3 Members views are being sought in relation to progression to consultation stage on 

the Phase 2 proposals and a recommendation to Cabinet to set aside funding from the 

Authority’s Place-Shaping Reserve. 

 

Page 35

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8



2.4 Officers will ensure that Members are updated on a regular basis in relation to all 
aspects of the proposals e.g. financial, business case, ministerial approval, 
consultation process etc. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Prior to a report being presented to Cabinet Members are asked to: - 
 

a) Note the contents in this report  
b) Endorse the recommendation to proceed to consultation on the proposal for the 

amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior School and Llanfabon Infants School in line 
with the requirements of the Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code 
2018 

c) Endorse the consultation process outlined in 5.4.3 and 5.5.4 in respect of 
Plasyfelin Primary School and the Centre for Vulnerable Learners that are not 
subject to the Statutory requirements of the Welsh Government School 
Organisation Code 2018 

d) Endorse a recommendation that £4.716m is set aside from the Authority’s Place-
Shaping Reserve in respect of the Authority’s financial contribution to Phase 2 of 
the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Band B programme.  

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To ensure Members are updated on the progress of Phase 2 of the 21st Century 

Schools and Colleges Capital Band B programme 
 
4.2 To seek Members endorsement to proceed to consultation stage and assist the 

Council in discharging its duties in line with the requirements of the Welsh 
Government’s School Organisation Code 2018 where this statutory legislation 
applies. 

 
4.3 To ensure that funding is earmarked in relation to the Authority’s financial 

contribution to the programme.   
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Band B  
 
5.1.1   The key aims of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Band B investment 

programme, outlined by Welsh Government, is to: 
 
• Reduce the number of poor condition schools.  
• Ensure that we have the right size schools in the right location, providing enough 

places to deliver Welsh and English medium education. 
• Ensure the effective and efficient use of the educational estate for use by both 

Schools and the wider Community.  
 
 
5.2      Band B Phase 2 
 
5.2.1  The schemes identified as part of Phase 2 of the Band B programme include the  

Page 36



adaption and refurbishment of the old grammar school building on the former 
Pontllanfraith High School site to accommodate a Centre for Vulnerable Learners 
(Pupil Referral Unit), the amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior and Llanfabon Infants 
school via the expansion of the existing Llanfabon Infants site to accommodate 275 
pupils plus nursery, and a new build replacement Plas-y-felin Primary school in the 
grounds of the existing school site to accomodate 420 pupils plus nursery. 

 
 
5.3 Phase 2 - Llancaeach Junior School and Llanfabon Infants School 
 
5.3.1 The proposal relates to the amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior School and 

Llanfabon Infants School via the expansion and refurbishment of the existing 
Llanfabon Infants site to accomodate the new 3-11 Primary School provision with 
places for 275 pupils plus nursery. 

 
5.3.2 The School Organisation Code 2018 applies to proposals in respect of maintained 

schools as defined by Section 98 or the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 
Act 2013 and provides clear statutory guidance as to the processes that need to be 
adhered to for this proposal by the Education Directorate when progressing a 
proposal.   

 
5.3.3 The statutory process that must be followed is outlined below subject to Cabinet 

approval to move to consultation: 

 Due to the nature of the scheme a consultation process as per the statutory 
guidance provided in the School Organisation Code 2018 will be undertaken. 

 A ‘Consultation Document’ will be published, and consultees as prescribed in 
the School Organisation Code 2018 will have the opportunities to express 
their views on the proposal during the consultation period.   

 Children and Young People’s views will also be captured to ensure the ‘pupil 
voice’ is included as part of the process. 

 A ‘Consultation Report’ will be produced summarising the views received and 
presented to Education Scrutiny Committee to endorse the recommendations 
and then to Cabinet for approval to progress to Statutory Notice. 

 A ‘Statutory Notice’ will be published for a 28 day period where formal written 
objections may be submitted by prescribed consultees as outlined in the 
School Organisation Code 2018 

 An ‘Objection Report’ will be presented to Scrutiny summarising the concerns 
and Members will be asked to endorse the recommendations to Cabinet to 
proceed to Full Business Case 

 Property Services to undertake full planning application process including 
formal consultation as per planning guidance 

 Full Business Case submission to Welsh Government for final review and 
approval at Welsh Government’s Business Case Scrutiny Group and 
Programme Investment Panel 

 
 
5.4  Phase 2 - Plasyfelin Primary School  
  
5.4.1 The proposal relates to a new and enlarged replacement school for Plasyfelin 

Primary School to be situated within the current grounds of the existing school site to 
include increased accommodation for up to 420 pupils plus nursery provision and 
also additional multi-use sporting and facilities available for use by the school and the 
wider community.  This proposal will ensure future projected demand can be met 
within the area and to update a facility to provide a fit for purpose 21st Century facility.   

Page 37



 
5.4.2 The proposal for Plasyfelin Primary School is exempt from the consultation     

processes outlined in line School Organisation Code 2018 and the School Standards 
and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  Plasyfelin Primary School is classified as a 
community school under the code, however the requirement to consult under the 
code does not apply to proposals where a main entrance of the school on its new site 
would be under 1 mile from the current site and the enlargement is less than 25% of 
the current capacity, both of which apply in this case. 

 
5.4.3 The proposed process to be followed is outlined below subject to Cabinet approval: 

 Due to the nature of the scheme, there is no need to undertake a formal 
period of consultation as per the statutory guidance provided in the School 
Organisation Code 2018.  However, engagement with the school as well as 
the wider community will be undertaken throughout the process in line with 
the Authority’s Consultation and Engagement framework. 

 Property Services to undertake full planning application process including 
formal consultation as per planning guidance 

 Full Business Case submission to Welsh Government for final review and 
approval at Welsh Government’s Business Case Scrutiny Group and 
Programme Investment Panel 

 
 
5.5 Phase 2 - Centre for Vulnerable Learners 
 
5.5.1 The proposal is to adapt and refurbish the old grammar school building on the former 

Pontllanfraith High School site and develop bespoke sporting provision and facilities 
for pupils which will also be available for the wider community outside of school 
hours. 

 
5.5.2 For the purposes of reporting to Welsh Government, the Centre for Vulnerable 

Learners will be referred to in all correspondence to Welsh Government and 
supporting documentation as a Pupil Referral Unit. 

 
5.5.3 Pupil Referral Units are exempt from the consultation processes outlined in line 

School Organisation Code 2018 and the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) 
Act 2013.  

 
5.5.4 The proposed process to be followed is outlined below subject to Cabinet approval 

 Due to the nature of the scheme, there is no need to undertake a formal 
period of consultation as the statutory guidance provided in the School 
Organisation Code 2018 does not apply in this instance.  However, 
engagement with relevant agencies as well as the wider community will be 
undertaken throughout the process in line with the Authority’s Consultation 
and Engagement framework. 

 Property Services to undertake full planning application process including 
formal consultation as per planning guidance 

 Full Business Case submission to Welsh Government for final review and 
approval at Welsh Government’s Business Case Scrutiny Group and 
Programme Investment Panel 
 

 
 

Page 38



 
5.6 Current Phase 2 Position 
 
5.6.1 Phase 2 of the 21st Century Schools Band B programme was agreed by Cabinet at 

their meeting on the 7th April 2021. 
 
5.6.2 Outline Business Cases were submitted to Welsh Government for each respective 

proposal outlined above and reviewed by Welsh Government through a Business 
Case Scrutiny Group and Programme Investment Panel.   

 
5.6.3 Welsh Government and Minister for Education have approved the Outline Business 

Case for the above Phase 2 projects 
 
5.6.4 In order to progress to Full Business Case, consultation exercises are required. 
 This consultation is scheduled to commence October 2021 subject to Cabinet 

approval. 
 

5.6.5  The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 requires that the Welsh 
Ministers issue a School Organisation Code. The Code imposes requirements in 
accordance with which relevant bodies including local authorities must act when 
bringing forward proposals in respect of maintained schools as defined at Section 98 
of the 2013 Act. That is a school in Wales, which is a community, foundation or 
voluntary school, a community special school or a maintained nursery school.  
 

5.6.6 The consultation process will proceed in line with the requirements of Welsh 
Government Statutory Code document no 011/2018 - School Organisation Code 2nd 
Edition 2018 where exemptions do not apply 

 

5.6.7 The proposals for the Centre for Vulnerable Learners (Pupil Referral Unit) and 
Plasyfelin Primary School are exempt from the requirements to consult under the 
School Organisation Code 2018.  However, for the purposes of progressing this 
proposal and to enable transparent, balanced and open decision making, utilising the 
“Spectrum of Engagement” approach, an appropriate level of engagement in 
informing and consulting stakeholders will be undertaken, mirroring the equivalent 
processes outlined in Section 3 of the School Organisation Code 2018 only. 

 
5.6.8 A prescribed list of recipients as outlined in the code will be written to.  A consultation 

document will be published in both hardcopy and electronically via the Authority’s 
website based on the preferred option as evidenced from the options appraisal for 
each project.  Reasonable access to information will be promoted from an Equalities 
perspective and other formats will be made available on request.  

 
5.6.9 The consultation period will be for 42 days (with at least 20 of these being school 

days) to provide adequate time for consideration and response and conscientious 
consideration will be given to any responses received.   

 
5.6.10 The principles of engagement outlined in the Local Authority's Consultation and 

Engagement Framework 2020 will also be acknowledged and the project team will 
engage with any additional 'interested parties' as required.  

 
5.6.11 Following the consultation period, a consultation/briefing report along with any 

responses received will be collated and reported back to Members for full 
consideration prior to proceeding to Full Business Case. 

 

Page 39



5.6.12 Pursuant to Section 3.3 of the School Organisation Code 2018, there is no  
requirement to hold face-to-face consultation meetings. Furthermore, in line with the 
COVID-19 guidance provided by Welsh Government to reduce social interaction 
between people in order to reduce the transmission of coronavirus, the 21st Century 
Schools team will engage consultees through appropriate channels to ensure the 
dissemination of information and provision of a suitable platform for the consultees to 
make their views known is made available.   

 

5.7 Conclusion   

Members are asked to note the information provided for each proposal in sections 
5.3, 5.4 and 5.5 and endorse the recommendation to proceed to consultation stage 
following the process for each respective proposal as outlined above. 

 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 No assumptions have been made in relation to this report.  

 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

 
7.1  A full Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) has been completed in relation to each 

proposal to ensure compliance with the socio-economic duty, Sections 1 to 3 of Equality 
Act 2010 that came into force on the 1st April 2021.   
 
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/centre-for-vulnerable-learners-
sep2021 
 
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/llancaeach-junior-llanfabon-infants-
schools-sep202 

 
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/plasyfelin-primary-school-sep2021 

 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Phase 2 of the 21st Century Schools and Colleges Band B programme, currently 

totals £18,500,000.  The Authority’s contribution within this sum is £5,925,000 as 
detailed below. 

 

Project Name: LA Contribution  WG contribution Total Funding 

Centre for Vulnerable 
Learners 

£1,375,000 (25%) £4,125,000 £5,500,000 

Llancaeach/Llanfabon £1,400,000 (35%) £2,600,000 £4,000,000 

Plasyfelin Primary £3,150,000 (35%) £5,850,000 £9,000,000 

 
8.2 The Authority’s contribution will be met from the remaining funding of £1.209m 

already earmarked for 21st Century Schools and through the proposed earmarking of 
a further sum of £4.716m from the Authority’s Place-Shaping Reserve. 

 

Page 40

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/centre-for-vulnerable-learners-sep2021
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/centre-for-vulnerable-learners-sep2021
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/llancaeach-junior-llanfabon-infants-schools-sep202
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/llancaeach-junior-llanfabon-infants-schools-sep202
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/IIA/plasyfelin-primary-school-sep2021


8.3 The Welsh Government Grant allocation for individual projects within the 21st Century 
 Schools Band B programme is calculated consistently across Wales using the Building 
 Bulletin regultions BB98 - Secondary, BB99 – Primary and BB104 – Special/Pupil 
 Referral Units. There are a number different elements which have been included in the 
 calculations provided for each of the Phase 2 proposals, which include: 
 
 

 Proposed standard price per square metre 

 Furniture fitting and equipment per pupil 

 ICT per pupil 
 

 8.4 Largely due to a combination of the impact of Covid-19 and Brexit there are currently 
significant inflationary increases within the construction sector. This is being kept 
under close review but the current projected costs for the 21st Century Schools 
Programme will be subject to change. Members will be updated further as matters 
progress.  

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 This will be dependent on specific proposals and will be considered as part of the 

consultation process. 
 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The draft report was distributed as detailed below. All comments received have been 

reflected in this version of the report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 School Organisation Code 2018 (Welsh Government)  

School Standards & Organisation (Wales) Act 2013  
 
 
Author:   Andrea West, 21st Century Schools Manager 
  
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive  

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services  
Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services  
Mark S Williams, Corporate Director for Economy and Environment 
Councillor Ross Whiting, Cabinet Member, Learning and Leisure  
Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee  
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee  
Steve Harris, Head of Financial Services and S151 Officer 

 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy / Head of 
Transformation 
Sarah Ellis, Lead for Inclusion & ALN  
Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager 
Paul Warren, Strategic Lead for School Improvement 
Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager 
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 

Page 41



Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer, Equalities, Welsh Language & 
Consultation) 
Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Service and Monitoring Officer 
Ros Roberts, Business Improvement Officer 

 Mark Williams, Interim Head of Property Services 
  Steve Pugh, Corporate Communications Manager 
 

 
  

 
Background Papers: 
 
None 

Page 42



 
 
 

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
21ST SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
 

SUBJECT: ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 This report provides an update for Members regarding the progress of the Local 

Authority (LA) in relation to the implementation of the Additional Learning Needs (ALN) 
and Tribunal (Wales) Act (2018). 

 
 

2. SUMMARY  
 
2.1 The Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Act (2018) was given 

Royal assent in January 2018.  
 
2.2 The purpose of the Act is to create the legislative framework to improve the planning 

and delivery of additional learning provision by creating a unified process for children 
and young people 0-25.  This focuses on a person-centred approach to identifying 
needs early, putting in place effective support and monitoring, and adapting 
interventions to ensure they deliver desired outcomes.  The aim is to ensure improved 
outcomes through a simpler and less adversarial system. 

 
2.3 The Act is supported by secondary legislation and the Additional Learning Needs (ALN) 

Code which was finalised in 2021. 
 
2.4 Recent events have resulted in changes to the initial implementation timeline 

presented by Welsh Government.  Changes have been made as recently as July 2021. 
Implementation commences in September 2021 linked to any new identification of 
ALN.  The roll out is to take place in phases over a three year period. The second 
phase (specific cohorts begins in January 2021).   

 
2.5 All activity to date is in preparation for implementation. The LA has worked across the 

South East Wales consortia region (SEWC) to promote a coherent and collaborative 
regional approach. This has taken the form of a regional implementation plan.  Work 
has been supported by the regional transformation lead (Welsh Government funded) 
and also since May 2021 by a secondment to a local transformation lead (part funded 
by Welsh Government).  

Page 43

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 9



 
2.6 There has also been a focus on local need recognising where the LA’s have worked at 

a different pace.   
 
2.7  Ongoing work with partners in Social Care and Health has been critical in ensuring all 

elements of the Act are implemented as per the Welsh Government implementation 
plan from September 2021, such as the enforced changes to the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Act (Part 6) in relation to Children who are Looked After (CLA).   

 
2.8  The LA has utilised part of ALN grants to support developments. 
 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Members are requested to note the contents of the report and support the LA’s practice 

in embedding the ALN Act. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Members are asked to support the approach of the LA in order that the statutory duties 

of schools / education provisions and the LA are met and all children with ALN have 
their needs identified and met with appropriate provision.  

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Since the introduction of the ALN and Tribunal Act in 2018 the LA has been working 

regionally and with partners with a focus on four key areas, outlined in a regional 
implementation plan:   

 Early years 

 Schools 

 Post 16 

 Collaboration - SEWC, Health and Social care 
 
5.2 Since 2020 the focus has developed to include local implementation acknowledging 

different stages of development in LA’s and issues locally. 
 
5.3  At a regional level examples of activity links to: 

Early years  
 

 Completing the developing of and implementing new systems and processes 
to support early years; 

 Introducing the statutory role of the early years (additional learning needs 
coordinator (ALNCO);  

 Introducing and embedding person centred practice across all early years 
settings;  

 developing an early years training programme 

 creating provision maps; 

 introducing Individual development plans (IDPs); 

 developing an early year’s transition protocol; 

 establishing an ALN lead in settings; 

 developing and delivering the early year’s training package (13 modules) for all 
settings and child minders. This was led by Caerphilly, through a seconded part 

Page 44



time post, to support the regional early year’s teams. Due to Covid restrictions 
the training package has been converted to an online training offer with a mix 
of recorded sessions and training modules available as TEAMs sessions; 

 developing the 0-3 Communication Pathway, led by the regional early year’s 
teams in collaboration with Health (speech and language therapy) and COMiT 
(the regional speech and language support service) and piloted in regional 
settings. This has been adopted Welsh Government and made available 
nationally. 

 
Schools 
 

 developing and embedding a model of cluster working to support ALNCO’s; 

 development and delivery of an extensive four year training programme for 
ALNCOs, based on ALNCOs identification of their training and support needs. 
This programme has been developed to include a SWC ALN Transformation 
Network on HWB, which currently has over 1,000 members. The network gives 
access to all training modules and additional information to support ALNCOs 
and schools;  

 introduction of the National Middle Leadership professional learning 
programme, to support their professional development and the move to the 
new statutory role of ALNCo, supported by the EAS. 2 cohorts of Caerphilly 
ALNCOs (23) have undertaken this training; 

 development of a toolkit for ALNCOs, and training for new and aspiring 
ALNCOs;  

 introduction of a regional job description for ALNCOs, and a framework for 
senior leadership teams to support them in their new roles; 

 introducing a clear set of expectations for Head Teachers including outlining 
roles and responsibilities with the staff group and for Governors; 

 providing Governor training; 

 coaching and mentoring provided by the education Achievement Service (EAS) 
to support the national ALNCO Progression Pathway which will be available 
online in September 21, and will be freely available to all existing, new and 
aspiring ALNCOs from September 21; 

 partnership working with the EAS to ensure high quality teaching and learning 
for those with ALN, 

 providing guidance and resources to facilitate schools to implement the new 
IDP system; 

 supporting every  school to map out how they will meet the needs of their pupils 
with ALN (provision mapping) . 

 
Post 16  

            

 working with college leads, health and education to develop a set of principles 
to meet the needs of the majority of ALN students; 

 working with college ALNCOs to develop common approaches to the creation 
of  IDPs and person centred practice; 

 support for colleges identifying and sharing their provision maps identifying 
additional and universal provision available at college; 

 developing a post 16 transition protocol and process to ensure that students 
are identified and supported to make a successful transition to college. A Post 
16 LA, multi-agency steering group for has been established and meets 
regularly; 

Page 45



 access to a training programme for all college lecturers, which has included 
input from regional and LA specialist teachers from the regional sensory service 
and Caerphilly Autistic Spectrum Service (SENCOM, CASS); 

 bespoke transition packages for pupils with the most complex needs including 
hearing impaired and visually impaired students; 

 
Collaboration 
 

 establishing a  group led by the Caerphilly working with the regional Principal 
Educational Psychologists to map out the role of the educational psychologist 
and how the role will evolve to support ALN Transformation; 

 developing an ALN accountability framework (regional Inclusion leads and 
transformation lead), agreed with schools and partners including EAS, to 
monitor and evaluate school’s ALN practice and to share best practice across 
LAs and regionally; 

 producing the regional Personal Education Plan (PEP) and Individual 
Development Plan (IDP) for children who are looked after; 

 collaborative working with partners including Health and Social Care, through a 
variety of groups, including the Health Gwent Consortia Meeting and the Social 
Care ALN leads meeting, which have additional planning processes developed 
to support multi-agency working. Caerphilly have officers who attend and 
contribute regularly to influence practice.  Gwent Attachment Service (ABUHB) 
have delivered online training for ALNCos which has been accessed by over 
900 teaching and support staff across the region. Q and A sessions are 
provided monthly to all schools and have covered various topics including, 
speech and language, developing gross and fine motor skills, and early years;  

 establishing a regional statutory officers group who meet regularly to share best 
practice and develop common processes and systems to support 
transformation; 

 establishing a regional parent forum with Special needs advise service (SNAP), 
LA and parents to enable co-construction and consultation, problem solving and 
input into transformation developments; 

 establishing termly SNAP parent Q and A sessions with Health and Education, 
the topics are chosen by the parents and have included  addressing sleep 
problems, managing anxiety, how to improve social communication and diet; 

 development of an online presentation by the regional youth forum to inform 
other children and young people about ALN. This will be available online from 
September. The young people have also been trained in presentation skills by 
the UCAN charity so that they can deliver their presentations to pupils in schools 
across the region.  
 

5.4  The above work has been a collaboration between the regional transformation leads 
and Inclusion officers and as appropriate in partnership with EAS.  Caerphilly has lead 
on the early years work, the work of the Principal Educational Psychologists group and 
the development of the regional PEP.  

 
5.5 The above activity has been undertaken in preparation for the implementation of the 

Act from September 2021.  Statutory posts are in place and extensive training across 
all sectors has resulted in increased awareness and understanding and an impact on 
practice in schools such as the introduction of person centred practice and one paged 
profiles for children with additional learning needs.  In some instances teachers have 
used this approach to further their understanding of the needs of all children and 
developing person centred classrooms.  

 

Page 46



5.6 Parental forums have enabled LA’s to ensure increased awareness amongst parents 
and carers.  

  
5.7 In order to support local and regional developments Caerphilly has developed the 

online IDP process and the removing barriers to learning matrix (a pupil centred, online 
tool which identifies the complexity and interrelationship of difficulties that require 
Additional Learning Provision (ALP)). The matrix has been piloted by schools across 
the region and the feedback from this pilot has been very positive. Health will add their 
resources to support during the summer and the matrix will be available to all regional 
schools via an online format by September 21.  

 
5.8 Locally through use of the ALN grant we have used a seconded post to develop a pupil 

voice toolkit which will be available to all schools to support the gathering pupil views 
with a particular focus on the most complex children. This development of placing the 
learner at the heart of the ALN Reforms supports fully the Welsh Government vision 
for the ALN ET Act and the IDP process.  

 
5.9 The work of the ALNCO cluster leads at a local level has been supported through 

regular meetings identifying the needs of clusters and developing cluster and individual 
school planning to support ALN transformation. Recently the appointment of the local 
transformation leads has facilitated further development work with all Caerphilly 
schools to identify where support is required. 

 
5.10  Despite significant focus on this area of work there are a number of associated 

challenges across the region and for Caerphilly.  
 

 the impact of Covid leading to capacity to engage; 

 a delay in implementation guidance being issued by Welsh Government; 

 capacity of LAs and schools to deliver training to support implementation, when 
transformation funding ceases in March 22. 

 engagement with the Special Education Needs Tribunal for Wales (SENTW) and the 
need for clear understanding of ALN reform developments for the Tribunal; 

 demands on Health  and Social Services staff;  

 capacity for Social Care engagement and statutory teams. A rise regionally in numbers 
of CLA will impact on work load especially with the new Code requirements that all 
children who are looked after will have to have an LA maintained IDP and changes to 
the Belongings regulations. 

 IT systems development to enable an online IDP and the new statutory processes to 
be developed. 
 

5.11 Seeking solutions to the above are built into the work of the regional transformation 

lead and officers at a local level as appropriate and will delivered through the regional 

implementation plan, Health Implementation plan and the Social Care work plan for 

21/22. 

5.12 Conclusion 

5.13 The ALN and Tribunal Act (2018) provides the legislative framework for the 
identification of and provision for children with ALN, i.e. the statutory duties placed on 
the LA, schools and other partners. The LA has worked with regional partners and 
locally to ensure that all schools have appropriate knowledge to understand their 
statutory responsibilities in relation to identification of ALN and the development of the 
provision required to meet the needs of all pupils and to embed practice in line with the 
ALN Code. 

Page 47



 
5.14 The first phase of implementation begins in September 2021 and will continue in line 

with the Welsh Government implementation plan for the next three years.   This will be 
supported at a local and regional level through the ongoing development of systems, 
training and monitoring and evaluating progress. 

 
5.15 Over this period the LA will continue to work with schools to embed the legislation, 

review provision, and evaluate impact. 
 

6.  ASSUMPTIONS 

6.1 In considering the recommendations the following assumptions have been made: 

 Meeting the ALN of children and young people 0 – 25 years is a key statutory duty of 
the Council and as such must be reported to scrutiny to ensure that members are kept 
informed. 

 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 This report provides information and therefore an integrated impact assessment has 

not be completed at this time. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 Welsh Government has provided funding to LA’s to support the implementation of 

regional plans and has in March 2021 provided some funding to support LA’s with a 
local transformation post for one year.  LA’s have also been provided with ALN grants 
which can be used to support this work.  Indications are that there is no permanent 
funding to schools or LA’s to support to support the responsibilities of LA’s or schools 
linked to the Act for example development of systems, workforce development, 
increased age ranges, provision, placements or any support linked to appeals to The 
Special Educational Needs Tribunal for Wales (SENTW). Costs over the 
implementation period are difficult to estimate. If there are cost pressures these are 
likely to be linked to central teams and schools. 

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 In order to ensure compliance with the Act and ALN Code the existing statutory team 

has been developed to address potential capacity issues of managing both a new and 
existing system over a period of implementation (three years). The Educational 
Psychology Service is mindful of the pressures in terms of the role of the EP as outlined 
in the ALN  Code and where possible utilises grants to add capacity.  Within the 
Education Directorate there may be additional pressures linked to work within early 
years, responsibilities linked to CLA, responsibilities linked to EOTAS, elective home 
education and post 16 provision. This will have workforce development implications 
and an associated cost. 

 
9.2 There is no indication that additional funding will be available from Welsh Government 

to support with the development of statutory roles or the broader workforce 
development over and above the initial investment linked to the transformation and 
grants. 

Page 48



 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 The report reflects with views of the consultees. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWERS  
 
11.1 Additional Learning Needs and Tribunal Act (Wales) 2018 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 
Education Act 1996 
Equality Act 2010 
Social Services and wellbeing Act (2014) 
United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child. 

  
 
Author:  Sarah Ellis Lead for Inclusion and ALN elliss@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 

Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director, Education and Corporate Services  
Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services 
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer  
Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services 
Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance 
Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning & Strategy  
Sarah Mutch, Early Years Manager  
Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager 
Paul Warren, Lead for School Improvement 
Councillor Teresa Parry, Chair Education Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Carol Andrews, Vice Chair Education Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Ross Whiting, Cabinet Member for Learning and Leisure 
Ros Roberts, Business Improvement Manager 
Kath Bevan, Lead for Wellbeing and Equity (EAS) 
Nicola Barrett, Service Manager 
Lisa Downey, HR Service Manager 
Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
Tracey Pead, Regional Transformation Lead  
Irene Yendle, Statutory Team Lead 
Kyla Honey, Principle Educational Psychologist 
Owen Barry, Deputy Principle Educational Psychologist 

 
  
   

Page 49

mailto:elliss@caerphilly.gov.uk


Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 50



 
 
 

EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
21ST SEPTEMBER 2021  

 
 
SUBJECT: DIRECTORATE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT YEAR END REPORT 

2020/21 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To present Scrutiny with the year-end Education Service Performance Assessment 

which is part of the Council’s Performance Management Framework. 
 

1.2 The Performance Assessment (referred to hereafter as the DPA) is the Directorate’s 
self-assessment and forms part of the Council’s overall self-assessment activity. It 
provides information and analysis for the year ending 2020/21. Members are invited 
to discuss, challenge, and scrutinise the range of information in the DPA.   

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The Council’s revised Performance Framework was endorsed by Cabinet in February 

2020 and this report introduces one of the key components of the Framework, the 
Directorate Performance Assessment (DPA).  The DPA is a ‘self-assessment’ of 
Directorate’s progress across a wide range of information types and meets our ‘duty 
as a principal council to keep our performance under review’  
 

2.2 DPA’s are an opportunity to bring together a range of information and intelligence into 
one picture to answer the self-assessment questions of ‘how well are we performing, 
how do we know? And what and how can we do better? Appendix 1 is the Education 
Services Performance Assessment Year End Report 2020/21.   

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Members review the attached document (Appendix 1) and discuss, challenge, and 

scrutinise the information contained within. 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Scrutiny Members are involved in the ‘self-assessment’ process by scrutinising the 

Page 51

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 10



information within the Directorate Performance Assessment.  This also supports the 
principles within the new section (Part 6, Chapter 1) of the Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act which provides for a new performance and governance regime 
for principal councils. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The Performance Framework has been developed to meet several strategic and 

operational needs as well as to meet the legislation and further the Council’s desire 
to be a high performing learning organisation focused on meeting the needs of its 
residents.  The framework was piloted in 2019 and endorsed by Cabinet February 
2020 and now is reported as a regular part of scrutiny committees.  This report 
introduces and shares the Education dashboard (the DPA) for the year end 2020/21. 

 
5.2 The spirit of the DPA (appendix 1) is about providing learning. The DPA is less about 

performance and targets (though they have their place) and is more so to provide a 
wider picture of performance that will support reflective and challenging 
conversations and scrutiny that will ultimately lead to learning and further 
improvement.  

 
5.3 Conclusion   

This DPA covers the period April 2020 to March 2021 which of course includes the 
response to the initial lockdown in late March 2021; the return to school in September 
2020; the local lockdown that was introduced in Caerphilly shortly afterwards; the 
second national lockdown in January 2021, and the return to school with restrictions 
thereafter.  
 
It is impossible to adequately put in to words the size and scale of the challenges that 
our schools and LEA staff have faced during that period or to appropriately recognise 
the level of achievement that has taken place in overcoming every such challenge.  
 
Colleagues from across the service, wider organisation and our school communities 
have been incredible through extraordinarily challenging times and it is important that 
this DPA is considered through the lens of these efforts and the wider pandemic 
response. 
 
 

6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 

6.1 There are no assumptions thought to be required within this report.   

 
 
7. SUMMARY OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 This report is for information only and on this basis an integrated impact assessment 

is not required. 
 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications within this report, however the DPA (appendix 1) 

Page 52



has a section on resources including relevant budget outturns as part of the overall 
self-assessment of the directorate.  

 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no personnel implications within this report, although the DPA (appendix 1) 

has a section called ‘resources’ which provides data on a range of workforce 
aspects. 

 
 
10. CONSULTATIONS 
 
10.1 Any consultation responses have been included with in this report. 
 
 
11. STATUTORY POWER  
 
11.1 The Local Government Measure (2009) and Local Government (Wales) Act 2020 
 
 
Author: Richard (Ed) Edmunds, Corporate Director of Education and Corporate 

Services  
 
Consultees: Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive  
 Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Care and Housing 
 Mark S Williams, Corporate Director Economy and Environment 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer  
 Steve Harris, Head of Corporate Finance/s.151 officer  
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services  
 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Sue Richards, Head of Education Strategy and Planning  
 Cllr Ross Whiting, Cabinet Member for Learning and Leisure 
 Cllr Teresa Parry, Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Carol Andrews, Vice Chair of Education Scrutiny 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Directorate Performance Assessment (end of year report 2020/21) 
 
 

Page 53



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 54



Education Services Directorate Performance Assessment
2020/21 End of Year Update
Please select a section of your choice:

Performance

Customer Intelligence

Resources

Regulatory Information

Risks  

Well-being Objectives

Conclusion

Summary & Priorities

1 of 19

APPENDIX 1

P
age 55



Education Services Directorate Performance Assessment
Summary & Priorities

Name of Priority 
Completion 

Date
RAG Progress - Achievements - Comments

Aim the reduce the impact of poverty on Early Years Ongoing

During 2020/21 the Childcare Offer was realigned to provide Coronavirus Childcare Assistance Scheme (C-CAS) supporting childcare costs for children of critical 
workers 0-5years. The team changed processes tro move all applications and approval systems online. C-CAS processed 680 applications for 551 childcare 
placements for 767 critical workers. On August 31st the scheme was closed and the Childcare Offer reinstated from 1st Sept for working families of 3-4year olds. 
During Sept 2020 to Mar 2021 there were 781 applications for 863 childcare placements. The total spend on childcare placements in 2020-21 was £3,196,149.75 
which saved working families paying this bill alleviating additonal stresses on family financial situations, as well as ensuring the childcare sector continued to operate 
effectively as we come out of restrictions. 
The Flying Start programme continued to support the most disadvantaged families with childcare placements, family support, language interventions through phone 
calls, online virtual delivery and groups as well as in person sessions in clean spaces for the most vulnerable families. 2589 children had support during the year 
including 465 children taking up the offer of Flying Start Childcare placement. 
The Assisted and Supported Places scheme supported 45 families to access 69 childcare placements for children with emerging needs the term before they started 
nursery. 
In addition there was funding from the Child Development Fund in November 2020 for childcare placements for children whose development was impacted by covid 
and were not able to access provision through Flying Start, Childcare Offer or Assisted and Supported Places schemes. 
While 2020/21 was a challenging year there was a lot of learning which has improved access and delivery of support moving forward.  

It is important when exploring the performance information set out within the DPA for Education that the updates are also assessed against the continued difficulties presented by the COVID-19 pandemic. That said, it is incredibly encouraging that in 
spite of significant additional workload pressures and the challenges of pushing forward with our strategic intent within the constraints of the pandemic, we continue to make progress.

Throughout the pandemic Local Education Authority (LEA) staff, Caerphilly's Head Teachers and our school communities have been at the forefront of overcoming every challenge put before them in order to keep our children learning. The product of 
this support and the excellent working relatioships that exist across the County Borough stands us in good sted to continue the journey that began with the Shared Ambitions Strategy and to put in place the necessary steps to reignite, recover and 
reform learning. The pandemic has provided many opportunities to reflect on the changing landscape and to collectively take the best of what we know now forward in to the classroom of the future. 

Education priorities continue to be identified via the Service Improvement Plan and termly monitoring and evaluation processes. In September 2020, the SIP was amended ito address the immediate needs of the covid-19 pandemic.  The current SIP 
ended in  March 2021 Ongoing monitoring and valuatinon is identifying a range of emerging priorities for 2021-22 including:

1. Re-ignite, recover and reform learning in order to raise standards of learning.
2. Improve the aspiration, engagement and progress of vulnerable learners
3. Further develop the strategic vision for EOTAS.
4. Further reduce the number of NEET young people at the point of leaving compulsory education and beyond.
5. Improve pupil attendance
6. Effective Management and Implementation of the 21st Century Schools Programme.

I'd like to place on record my thanks to all staff for their continued commitment throughout the last year and for the contributions they will make over the coming months in delivering the emerging priorities set out above.

2 of 19

P
age 56



Education Services Directorate Performance Assessment
Summary & Priorities

Raise standards of attainment. Ongoing

Due to the ongoing suspension of Estyn Inspections, there is no change to existing data sets that provide a summary of performance.  However, schools identified as 
a cause for concern continue to be subject to regular meetings which ascertain progress towards recommendations or internal development  targets.  The evidence 
of school progress discussed at these meetings, which are attended by senior leaders across the Local Authority and EAS, are shared with Estyn in termly visits.   
Following review in spring term, one primary school was removed from 'estyn review'.  As a result, there is currently one secondary school in 'significant 
improvement', two primary schools in 'significant improvement', and two schools in 'estyn review' (one primary, one secondary).  There are no schools in 'special 
measures'.

The Education Achievement Service introduced the 'Celebrate, Share, Support and Refine' project in the spring term to ascertain how schools have maintained a 
commitment to standards and provision over the last twelve months.  More specifically, the project has helped the Local Authority and EAS understand the full range 
of teaching strategies that are being utilised to support learning.  The Local Authority has requested that all schools identified on the schools causing concern register 
participate in the project.

In response to the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic, the Welsh Government have cancelled all statutory data collections that were due to take place in Summer 
2021. This means that no end of key stage data will be submitted.  Therefore, there will be no data available for FP through to KS3.  Similarly, Welsh Government will 
not be reporting on KS4 and KS5 school performance measures for 2020/21.

Reduce the impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational and non-
vocational qualifications to provide equity of opportunity.

Ongoing

A range of activity has taken place in preparation for the implementation of a revised Local Authority NEETS strategy.  Follow-up work relating to pupils who were 
identified as NEET in 2019/20 has identified that approximately 20 of the ‘non-destination’ young people entered education, employment or training in the month 
following the data collection.   A NEETs strategy group has been created that includes lead officers across the Local Authority and secondary headteacher 
representatives.  This has facilitated a robust self-evaluation of current practice, with particular focus on roles and responsibilities alongside processes to provide 
appropriate support.  This strategy will be presented to scrutiny in the summer term.  The new annual NEETS data was published in May 2021 and is detailed in the 
performance section of this assessment.

The objective 'raise standards of attainment' describes updates for all pupils accessing education in Caerphilly schools.  Within these processes, the quality of 
provision and learning for pupils in receipt of free school meals contnues to be scrutinised and identified as a priority for discussion and evaluation.

In the spring term, a range of funded grants were provided to schools to support pupils from disadvantaged families. This includes the Accelerated Learner Progress 
grant, Pupil Development grant and Education Improvement grant.   The Local Authority and EAS continue to work with these schools to ensure best value for 
money.  The Local Authority also communicated to parents/carers updates relating to the PDG access grant, which provides financial support for the purchase of 
uniforms and school equipment.

The Edtech intiative continues to provide benefits for families who are unable to afford technology to carry out remote learning tasks.  In the spring term, the Local 
Authority took advantage of a Welsh Government offer to extend the funding of MiFi units to enable home broadband.  Additional Mifi units were also distributed to 
secondary schools to meet demand.  Informal discussions with schools have indicated that all pupils who required a chromebook now have access.  This is to be 
further explored in the summer term via a comprehensive needs analysis undertaken by the LA digital team.

Reduce the Impact of Poverty upon communities 
Long term and 

ongoing 

The Youth Service's out-turn achievement figures demonstrate that the target for the successful delivery of non-formal qualifications for the year has been 
dramatically over-achieved, with the service's out-turn figures relating to formal qualifications slightly short of target.  Aligned with the services Engagement and 
Progression (NEETs) activity, this activity helps ensure successful transitions to, for example, further education and employment, thereby contributing to the 
chellenging of poverty in our communities. The Council has taken an innovative approach to FSM provision during the Covid pandemic which has ensured our most 
vilnerable children recieve healthy, nutricious meals delivered direct to their doorstep at a time when they need it most. This amazing achievement was made 
possible thanks to the support of staff across the Council. The digital solutions that we used also helped make the whole operation smoother and more efficient and 
is an excellent example of how Councils can embrace innovation to benefit our Communities

3 of 19

P
age 57



Education Services Directorate Performance Assessment
Summary & Priorities

Help those who are able to follow a non-traditional attainment path. Mar-20

Collaboration and innovation have been the key fundamentals of the work during this unique year. All professionals involved with EOTAS delivery have worked to 
ensure engagement with the young people placing significance on wellbeing and also focusing on progress. At the Learning Centre, staff have been able to utilise 
technology to link with students and families during periods of lockdown. However, for almost all of the period the centre as remained open and welcomed students 
on site. Staff have worked with other agencies to ensure the student experience has been a very positive one for example CAG whose staff were able to adapt 
normal practice and deliver engaging sessions on site. Professional learning opportunities have focused on the use of technology, ALN Act and new curriculum.  The 
HIVE Community Centre and Innovate have remained open throughout the year to ensure continued wellbeing support for students. 

The continued development of remote / blended learning has had a significant impact on those students who are receiving a period of home tuition. Developing 
‘virtual’ links with classrooms in their mainstream schools has allowed them to link with teachers they know and peers online, with the added support of a tutor to 
help them make progress and address wellbeing issues. The strengthening of this link has ensured students are able to transition back to their mainstream school 
when appropriate.

Quality assurance of our procured providers has also revealed positive developments in the way in which students have engaged with the curriculum on offer. A 
comprehensive online ‘classroom’, developed through Google resulted in students making greater progress in some areas than previously experienced. Combining 
this offer with face-to-face support ensured such providers were able to offer engaging lessons and wellbeing interventions where and when necessary.

In terms of specific groups almost 80 year 11 students successfully engaging through the Centre Determined Grades process.

Support learning that enables young and adult employment opportunities including 
a focus on 'future skills'

Long term and 
ongoing 

The employability team provides courses and full QCF qualifications to meet the local labour market needs.  Working with employers to identify employment 
opportunities, courses are provided to enable young people and adults to gain the skills and knowledge to apply for the vacancies across and beyond the borough.  
There have been a number of courses set up exclusively for identified employers, where the employer has agreed that interviews will take place for all the 
participants who have completed the training.  Although linking with our participants has been a significant challenge during the last 12 months the team has been 
innovative in its approach and has contunued to support throughout the pandemic.

Improve digital skills for all ages.
Long term and 

ongoing 

The network infrastructure installations, as part of Waves 1-3 of the EdTech programme, to replace network switches and access points within schools is progressing. 
To date, 86 school sites (internal infrastructure) have been completed.  All external access points have been completed.  In addition,  configuration work related to 
school servers in both primary and secondary schools has been completed.   

Improved connectivity in schools has been identified as a main priority for improvement.  This is, in part, due to increased use of technology in lessons over the last 
twelve months.  The uplift of Tredomen Data Centre from 1gb to 2gb has been completed alongside a CPE router upgrade.  Line capacity upgrades have been 
completed in all secondary schools, with the exception of Idris Davies 3-18 and YG Cwm Rhymni (Gellihaf site).  Line capacity upgrade to 12 large primary schools has 
been scheduled over the summer term.  However, further work is required to improve connectivity in schools.  To rectify this, a Smoothwall filtering project is 
currently being planned to be completed before the start of the Autumn term.  The formation of a HT stakeholder group has been helpful in troubleshooting issues 
as they occur.

As part of the Wave 4 phase of Edtech, approximately 6000 chromebooks have been allocated and delivered to schools, with appropriate sustainability plans in 
place.  
An additional 1500 chromebooks remain from the original allocation. An additional 3000 chromebooks have been gifted by Welsh Government.  An approach to the 
distribution of these additional chromebooks is to be agreed in summer term. 

A small percentage of schools in Caerphilly have undertaken an updated Self-evaluation process support by EAS.  LA to collect in outcomes of self evaluation in 
  d  h  h l   k

4 of 19

P
age 58



Education Services Directorate Performance Assessment
Summary & Priorities

Improve the learning environment.
Long term and 

ongoing 

Place Shaping the Educational estate and improving opportunities for Learners by delivering fit for purpose 21st Century Schools has remained the focus of the 21st 
Century Schools team through the effective management and Implementation of the 21st Century Schools Programme and Welsh Government/Local Authority 
Grants Programme.
21st Century Schools Programme:
•	Band A Programme
Closing reports have been submitted to Welsh Government for the completed Band A projects to draw final funding down from Welsh Government.  The works in 
total over the lifetime of the Band A programme has resulted in £56.5 million of investment and has resulted in enhanced/new facilities at Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm 
Rhymni, Y Gwyndy Campus, Newbridge School, Blackwood Comprehensive, Idris Davies 3-18 School  and Islwyn High School  in addition to the current improvements 
works still in progress at Trinity Fields Special School.
•	Band B Programme
Whilst an initial suite of projects was identified as part of the Strategic Outline Plan submitted to Welsh Government in 2017, each individual project has to be taken 
through an individual appraisal, scrutiny and approval process.  Where applicable, the Welsh Government’s School Organisation Code 2018 must be followed.
Phase 1 - Two proposals have been progressed through the business case, consultation and decision making process as outlined in the School Organisation Code 
2018. 
Proposal: Expansion of the existing Trinity Fields School to support 80 additional places and the provision of state of the art facilities for our most vulnerable pupils 
that are capable of meeting learning, social and medical needs, as well as the creation of facilities for integrated working across Education, Social Services and Health 
and the provision of opportunities for childcare, outdoor space and community use.
Proposal: Relocation and expansion of Ysgol Gymraeg Cwm Gwyddon onto the former Cwmcarn High site to provide fit for purpose childcare, a 16 place Special 
Resource Base and increase educational provision and capacity of the school from 220 to 420 primary plus nursery
B th l    bj t t   f ll l i  li ti   hi h i  i  Phase 2 - Three proposals have been identified as part of this phase of the Band B programme.  
Proposal: Creation of a centre of excellence for vulnerable learners from across Caerphilly equipped with high quality learning opportunities, indoor and outdoor 
sporting provision as well as access to first class support. The Centre will reduce the need to outsource support for learners to private providers and will enable 
community use of the facilities outside of school hours.
Proposal: Creation of a new state of the art Plasyfelin Primary School on the grounds of the existing site to include community use of the facility.
Proposal: The amalgamation of Llancaeach Junior School and Llanfabon Infants School to create a new Primary School to include community use of the facility.
Outline Business Cases have been submitted to Welsh Government for scrutiny and approval at their Business Case Scrutiny Group and Programme Investment 
Panel.  The Authority is awaiting a formal response prior to any further progression at this stage.

Grants Programme:
In addition, a range of activities have continued to take place during 2020/21 to ensure the effective management and maintenance of existing educational assets to 
support the transformation of the educational estate and enabling  increased opportunities for Learners through improving the learning environment across the 
borough
•	Welsh Medium Grant
  
Expansion of Welsh Medium throughout the borough is progressing well.
	     
•	Community Hubs 
Caerphilly CBC Athletics Hub Construction of a running track on the school field site located at Rhiw Syr Daffydd Primary school is nearing completion. The track 
consists of a 300m, 6 lane track and provision for sprint and fields events.	

Welsh Government / Local Authority Capital Maintenance Grants
The Authority is continuing to identify and invest in projects within schools to improve the facilities on an annual basis.  This has included a 2 classroom extension at 
Ystrad Mynach Primary School and currently work is underway to undertake expansion of Glan y Nant Pupil Referral Unit.	

Safeguard all children and young people in order to create a climate for learning, 
particularly the most vulnerable.

Under COVID-19, a number of protocols and procedures have been implemented to adapt to the new way of working, for example updated guidance for schools 
regarding safeguarding responsibilities during lock down, schools’ blended learning policy, live streaming/on-line learning and risk assessments. The LA has adopted 
the Welsh Government guidance and expectations in relation to supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged learners.  Hubs were offered to the most vulnerable 
learners. Regular online surgeries for Head Teachers have been held to explore any COVID 19 pandemic related issues that impact education settings. 

In January 2021, the new multi-agency Safeguarding Hub was introduced to IAA; education is an integral part of this system when safeguarding concerns are 
received. Schools/education settings are required to take part in strategy discussions to share pertinent information and  contribute to the multi-agency safety 
planning for children who are deemed vulnerable or ‘at risk’.

The LA provides robust training and support to schools/education settings, LEI & Governors. The LA has revised the model of training for schools recognising the 
need to ensure that there is a sustainable model in place that will enhance the capacity for schools to effectively manage safeguarding issues.
There are robust monitoring arrangements in place to the scrutinise physical Intervention, Operation Encompass alerts, regarding the recording and monitoring of 
Discriminatory incidents and audits.

5 of 19

P
age 59



  * All exclusion data will be confirmed when verified

Priority 6 - Reduce the rates of exclusion, therefore impacting upon pupil attainment 

Performance

1 0 0

16

24

17

29

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Sept 16 - Aug 17 Sept 17-Aug 18 Sept 18-Aug 19 Sept 19- Aug 20

Number of  Permanent Exclusions academic yr 

307
239

304

197

817

938 940

778

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Sept 16 - Aug 17 Sept 17-Aug 18 Sept 18-Aug 19 Sept 19- Aug 20

Number of Fixed Term Exclusions  academic yr

572.25 577 613 478

2870
3244

2704

1777

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Sept 16 - Aug 17 Sept 17-Aug 18 Sept 18-Aug 19 Sept 19- Aug 20

Total Number of Days Lost academic yr

Priority 2 - Increase the percentage of pupil attendance across primary and secondary in order to maximise pupils’ learning 

Primary Schools Secondary Schools

94.7 94.5 94.7 94.8

93.3 93.4
94

93.5

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

Sept 16 - Aug 17 Sept 17-Aug 18 Sept 18-Aug 19 Sept 19- Feb 20

% Pupil Attendance in Caerphilly Schools
What is the Performance information telling us?

The decision by Welsh Government to cancel all statutory data collections related to attendance and pause all statistical releases due to the coronavirus outbreak has meant that there will not be 
an official record of pupil attendance for  2020-2021.   Attendance data collection in the Autumn term is not a measure of the effectiveness of school strategies or the Local Authority attendance 
strategy, but largely reflects the number of pupils required to isolate as a result of advice from environmental health services.   

The education welfare service has continued to largely repurpose itself to support the welfare of individual families, supporting the pupils return to school on a case-by-case basis.  Data is collected 
on a daily basis identifying the number of pupils (and staff) that are symptomatic, required to self isolate or confirmed to have covid-19.  This has supported the LA in identifying (and supporting) 
schools that are particuarly challenged by a high numbers of  cases.  The Local Authority's approach to improving attendance is to be reviewed and updated in the summer term.

Similarly, the statistical release for exclusions has also been paused, therefore, preventing a comparison against other local authorities.  Prior to lockdown, pupil exclusion across a range of 
indicators remained too high (number of fixed term exclusions, number of pupils, number of permanents) and remains a significant area for improvement.  As in the case of the educational welfare 
service, education psychology and the inclusion team work with schools and individual pupils to limit the number of exclusions during the lockdown period.  

During the year the approach to addressing exclusions has been reviewed with the development of an Inclusion compendium and associated exclusions guidance. to be agreed at Cabinet in June 
2021.  New processes are being developed and a revised monitoring cycle of exclusion reports to SMT will sign off data. A revised process of support to schools will be in place and reviewed 
regularly.

Primary Schools Secondary Schools

6 of 19

P
age 60



Performance

Priority 1 - Improve outcomes for all learners particularly those within Key Stage 3 and 4
Priority 5 - Improve provision and outcomes for vulnerable groups 

A summary of perfromance is provided in Summary & Priorities.

Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 3.

In 2018, teacher assessment data is to be utilised solely to inform approaches to teaching and learning int he classroom, rather than as a tool for accountability. Therefore, teacher assessment data and National Reading and Numeracy Test data at a school, local authority and consortia 
level will no longer be published. This applies to the Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 3 in all maintained primary and secondary schools. 

Key Stage 4

Measures
In 2019, Welsh Government have moved away from threshold measures. The interim performance measures are made up of five headline measures, all based on points scores. Reports on these measures will include Year 11s only.
Capped 9 score- calculates the average of the scores for the best awards for all individual learners in the cohort, capped at a specified volume of GCSEs or equivalent qualifications. 
Literacy- calculates the average of the scores for all individual learners in the cohort, taking the best grade from any of the literature or first language Welsh or English GCSEs awarded to a learner.
Numeracy- calculates the average of the scores for all individual learners in the cohort, taking the best grade from either of the mathematics or mathematics – numeracy GCSEs awarded to a learner.
Science- The science measure calculates the average of the scores for all individual learners in the cohort, taking the best grade from science GCSEs awarded to a learner. Currently this is limited to awards in the WJEC suite of science GCSE qualifications available to learners.
Welsh Bacc Skills Challenge Certificate-The Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate measure calculates the average of the scores for the Welsh Baccalaureate Skills Challenge Certificate awards for all individual learners in the cohort, whether it is the Foundation (Level 1) or the 
National (Level 2) award.

However, In response to the Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic, the Welsh Government cancelled all statutory data collections that would have been due to take place in Summer 2020. This means that no end of key stage data was submitted, therefore there is no data available for FP 
through to KS3.  Due to the cancellation of summer 2020 GCSE, AS and A level examinations, the Welsh Government will not be reporting on KS4 and KS5 school performance measures for 2019/20. Analysis of standards for this year cannot include aggregated LA data or individual school 
performance data and, therefore, comparison of year on year progress is not possible.

NEET Performance data  20/21 (for Academic year 19/20) recieved in October 2020 and validated by May 21 showed improvement to 1.7% which equates to 34 
pupils out of 1979 pupils. This is one of the best reductions in NEETS since 2012

Of those 34 pupils reasons as to why they would not be able to to enter into employment, education or training is a range of reasons including health or 
medical issues. 

We origninally were concerened that due to the Covid situation the NEET figure would rise in the next reporting period  as the nature of the work requires 
considerable contact opportunity and face to face support and the Virus lockdown restricted this.

However lockdown did result in an opportunity to get information on after school destinations, particularly those already less engaged with schools for various 
reasons 

We have identified this as a new risk in the Directorate Risk Register but reduced the risk to medium as the result was better than hoped for, however the 
coming summer still presents some challenges so we will keep this on the risk register for now. 

*Neet was 5.9% when we started recording this data in 20120.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21

1.90%

2.60%

2.20%
2.40%

1.70%

% of year 11 leavers from schools who are not in education, employment and training 
(NEETS) 

7 of 19

P
age 61



Performance

Priority 3  Reduce the Impact of Poverty upon communities
Priority 5  Improve provision and outcomes for vulnerable groups

All Adult Employability Targets are being 
exceeded. 

70
79 85 85 90

102 111
128 134

135 137 141 144

68 70 77 77 83 89 95 102 108 115 121 127 133

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Qtr 1
18/19

Qtr 2
18/19

Qtr 3
18/19

Qtr 3
18/19

Qtr 4
18/19

Qtr 1
19/20

Qtr 2
19/20

Qtr 3
19/20

Qtr 4
19/20

Qtr 1
20/21

Qtr 2
20/21

Qtr 3
20/21

Qtr 4
20/21

Number of people supported into employment by Bridges into Work 
2 (aged 25+)

Number of people supported into employment by Bridges into Work 2 Target

210 220
240 240 258 273 296 328 336 336 346

347 366

149

219 229 229 241 259
287 285 303 321 331 347 365

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Qtr 1
18/19

Qtr 2
18/19

Qtr 3
18/19

Qtr 3
18/19

Qtr 4
18/19

Qtr 1
19/20

Qtr 2
19/20

Qtr 3
19/20

Qtr 4
19/20

Qtr 1
20/21

Q2
20/21

Qtr 3
20/21

Qtr 4
20/21

Number of people gaining qualifications through Working Skills 
for Adults 2 (aged 16+)

Number of people gaining qualifications through Working Skills for Adults 2 Target

18 21
38

55 55 58 66
78

92 100

103 109
120

106

18 20 22
31 31 39 47 50 53 61 67 71 77 83

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Qtr 4
17/18

Qtr 1
18/19

Qtr 2
18/19

Qtr 3
18/19

Qtr 3
18/12

Qtr 4
18/19

Qtr 1
19/20

Qtr 3
19/20

Qtr 3
19/20

Qtr 4
19/20

Qtr 1
20/21

Qtr 2
20/21

Qtr 3
20/21

Qtr 4
20/21

Number of young people supported into employment by 
Inspire 2 Work (aged 16-24) 

Number of young people supported into employment by Inspire 2 Work
Target

Youth Service

The number of registered young people who engaged with the youth service during 2020/21 totalled 1982 individuals. This 
was less than last year due to Covid 19. Registered young people include all those who consent to personal details and 
information being held and processed, and who access the service on a regular basis. ‘Unregistered’ young people include:  
- Young people who use provisions as a drop in to access advice and support but may not want to register with the service 
- Young people who engage with youth workers during detached and outreach work on the streets,
- Young people who benefit from sessions provided by youth workers in schools, colleges and other youth support services .
The number of registered young people engaged during 2020/21 represents 6% of the youth population (those aged 10-25 
years), was a decrease on the previous year. LA Youth Services engaged with an average of 15% of the youth population. 
Within our region, in 2018/19, Newport engaged 7%, Torfaen 10%, Blaenau Gwent 17% and Monmouthshire 26%. 
The decrease in the percentage of the population registered since 2013 is due to a number of factors including :
- A loss of projects that had the capacity for large number of young people such as Communities first funded Hub Project.
- The changing nature of grant funded projects which has seen a shift to more targeted interventions with young people with 
more complex needs, as opposed to issued based work with large groups. 

Employment Performance  

Despite the pandemic, the outcomes are better than expected as 
many staff were redeployed to other duties across the LA. We 
have managed to deliver skeleton support via email and 
telephone, we have also delivered a range of online qualifications 
despite the IT issues that the participants experience.

Referrals from JCP have been greatly reduced due to the 
pandemic and the JCP offices remaining closed.

The projects have managed to remain within the 15% tolerance 
and as long as we can continue within the tolerance there should 
not be any risks of clawback. Going forward it’s very hard to 
predict as we’d not know at this point whether there will be any 
further lockdowns.

8 of 19

P
age 62



Standards Wellbeing
Teaching and 

Learning 
Experiences

Care, Support 
and guidance

Leadership and 
Management

Excellent 12% 12% 12% 15% 15%
Good 73% 73% 69% 73% 62%
Adequate 15% 15% 19% 8% 12%
Unsatisfactory 0% 0% 0% 4% 12%

Standards Wellbeing
Teaching and 

Learning 
Experiences

Care, Support 
and guidance

Leadership and 
Management

Excellent 17% 17% 17% 17% 17%
Good 33% 50% 50% 50% 33%
Adequate 50% 33% 33% 33% 50%
Unsatisfactory 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Standards Wellbeing
Teaching and 

Learning 
Experiences

Care, Support 
and guidance

Leadership and 
Management

Excellent 13% 13% 13% 16% 16%
Good 66% 69% 66% 69% 56%
Adequate 22% 19% 22% 13% 19%
Unsatisfactory 0% 0% 0% 3% 9%

Primary Schools (26)

Secondary & Special Schools (6)

All Schools (32)

External Intelligence

Complaints Q3 and Q4 (year-end) 2020/2021 trends

More school based complaints were brought to our attention during the 3rd quarter, these are 
higher than the complaints received in 4th quarter, this is down to the fact that schools closed 
again a few days prior to the Christmas holidays. The hub provisions were once again put in place 
for Jan-March. Also during the 4th quarter the amount of Education support services complaints 
raised, the main trend for these concerns were due to complaints surrounding the Hub provisions 
and parents eligibility for these places. 

COVID-19 is again the common theme for these 2 quarters, dealing with the concerns and 
anxieties of parents during the lockdown period, dealing with hub queries and now dealing with 
parents concerns regarding their children returning to school. 

Notes: 
Please note that ‘Schools’ figure only capture complaints that have come through to the 
L.A. Schools have their own complaints policy/process that must be dealt with by the 
school. However the L.A may give advice and guidance on these complaints but direct 
them back to the school for response, some complaints go straight to the school and the 
L.A will not record these.  These numbers only reflect the complaints we are aware of. 

Satisfaction
Satisfaction levels regarding the quality of youth work received by young people remain high:  
The service conducts the survey in all sections/projects, regardless of open access or more 
focussed/targeted work and satisfaction levels across all areas are high and consistent.  This 
measure is not considered in isolation, however, with this and other data relating to quality 
triangulated to ensure that the service can interrogate and respond to results.

The Youth service has a range of other measures that monitor rounder aspects of service, and is 
reviewing which ones may be included for future reporting.

Estyn Inspections *

Libraries

COVID-19 has severely impacted the delivery of all library services to the community bwtween April 2020 - March 2021.  All libraries closed their doors to the public on 20/03/2020. Alternative service
delivery timeline: LibraryLink Home Delivery service began on 17/7/20.  On 1/9/20 Order and Collect began at Bargoed, Caerphilly & Risca Libraries and were extended to all other libraries November 
20.   October 2020,  libraries reclosed for 2 week fire break and resumed services in November. In Dec 20 all libraries reclosed and services suspended as per Welsh Government instruction and library 
staff were redeployed to support Free School Meal deliveries, TTP and Customer Services Contact Centre until 01/04/2021.

However the closure of the library service during COVID positively saw a dramatic rise in eBook and eAudiobook loans and resource expenditure  increased to reflect these changes.  Borrowbox users
increased by 22.87%, eBook Loans increased to 27,819 from 15,385, an increase of 58.27%, eAudiobook Loans saw loans rise to 21,337 from 14,683, a rise of 31.19%.  We recieved approx 516 Order 
and Collect online applications, and Order and Collect appointments of 4,445.  There were an estimated 1171 Library LInk home deliveries for 20/21 with 189 online applications received.

96%

94%

100%

99%
100%

91%

92%

93%

94%

95%

96%

97%

98%

99%

100%

101%

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 19/20 20/21

% of Young People who expressed satisfaction with the service 

9of 19

P
age 63



External Intelligence

Library Service 2019-2020 Core Performance comparisons to 2020-2021

Library Service Performance Area 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 Commentary
The percentage of adults who think the Borough Library Service 
is 'very good' or 'good' overall

99% 98% 98%
The CIPFA Adult Survey conducted during May 2019 and are conducted bienially. Due to  ongoing 
COVID restrictions the survey will be restricted in 2021.

Average child satisfaction score with their local library out of 10 9.4 9.4 9.4
CIPFA Children & Young Adult survey was conducted in July 2018.  Surveys are conducted biennially 
with the next one due in Oct 2020 but could not be completed due to Covid restrictions and the 
inability for the public to access library buildings.

Percentage of adults who think that the customer care they 
received from their local library is 'very good' or 'good'

99% 99% 99%
CIPFA Adult Survey conducted during May 2019 has not been repeated in 2021 due to ongoing covid 
restrictions

Total number of visits to library premises for the year 2020-2021 651,926 650,881 N/A
The figure is unavailable for 2020/2021 due to COVID closures, which impacts our services ability to 
report on the majority of targets.

Total number of active borrowers during the year 37,849 37,120 N/A
Data report is currently unavailable.  The All-Wales LMS Consortia have agreed the report for 
2020/2021 active borrowers will not be run until 1st June 2021. However we can correctly assume 
active borrowers of the service will be lower during this year due to COVID.

Total loans for the year (adult and child) 563,175 452,211 38,874

Previous loan statistics combined item issues and renewals.  On 1/4/20, Caerphilly moved to the 
Welsh Consortia Library Management System called Symphony.  During COVID-19 closures, it was 
agreed by the Wales Consortia that items will be automatically renewed by the system, this means 
20/21 figure includes issues only and no renewal figures.

Total loans for the year (adult and child downloads) 32,092 49,275 49,156
Included in previous year's figures are eMagazine and eComic usage statistics. It is important to note 
that to date, these figures have not been provided to Welsh library authorities by Welsh 
Government. The figure provided are only for eBook and eAudiobooks that are issued.

Est. * 68,312 This figure is estimated complete figure, based on eMagazine and eComics taken from 2019/2020* 

Number of Welsh Government Core Entltlements achieved in full 
or part

12/12 12/12 N/A
A WPLS return for 2020/2021 has not been completed in its standard form due to the COVID-19 
disruption.  An alternative WPLS return and reporting template is currently being prepared by MALD 
(WG) due for completion by library services in Wales during June / July 2021.

Number of Welsh Government measurable Quality Indicators 
achieved in full or part

8 in Full 7 in Full N/A This data has been verified by Welsh Government

2 in Part 1 in Part
1 Fail

What is our Estyn Inspections telling us? 

Estyn Inspections
* The data in the table  above represents an overview of Estyn inspections from 
September 2017 to March 2020. This is from the introduction of a revised framework for 
Estyn inspections to the period where all activity was suspended due to the coronavirus 
outbreak. Estyn’s guidance on self-evaluation for local authority inspections states that 
judgements will be based on evidence from inspections over a three year 
period. Therefore, evaluations have to take all inspections during this timeframe into 
account.  Estyn inspections have been suspended until  September 2021. 

What is our other customer intelligence telling us? 

Libraries
In the recent Caerphilly conversation survey Survey conducted during November / 
December 2020, results noted that: 55% of survey participants were aware of the 
LibraryLink/remote ordering library services during COVID. They also considered Library 
as important as a key frontline service. They felt that libraries are considered a service 
important for face to face delivery and supported using existing buildings such as libraries 
to develop 'hubs' where residents can access multiple council services.

Estyn Local Authority Review:

Estyn undertook a review of all local authorities in Autumn 2020.  Caerphilly’s report noted the following features:

• The local authority has responded swiftly to the demands of the pandemic. Officers have placed a strong emphasis on supporting schools as much as they can, while also providing clear leadership. 
• Different departments within the local authority have worked collaboratively during the pandemic, resulting in a co-ordinated approach to supporting schools and PRUs, pupils, staff and parents. This has been a strong feature of the authority’s response and much appreciated by school leaders.
• Schools have also been positive about the way in which the local authority has communicated with parents/carers. For example, it communicated directly with them regarding the live streaming of lessons, helping to manage parental expectations.
• Priority has been given to safety and wellbeing with a particularly strong emphasis on meeting the needs of the most vulnerable pupils, particularly those eligible for free school meals.
• Elected members have been kept well informed of developments relating to education. They have received regular updates and reports.
• The local authority has worked closely with the regional consortium to provide support for schools to plan for learning this term. Officers have encouraged schools to take advantage of the resources and professional learning provision offered by the region.

Following publication of a national report, a number of recommendations were stated for all local authorities:

• Urgently address barriers to learning at home, particularly where this is due to a lack of access to suitable computers or adequate connectivity
• Improve the quality of the distance and blended learning experiences for pupils by supporting more effective teaching across and within schools and PRUs
• Develop a coherent approach to improve progress in literacy, numeracy and personal and social skills of vulnerable pupils disproportionally affected by the pandemic, for example pupils eligible for free school meals
• Establish strategies to monitor and address the long-term impact of the pandemic on the physical and mental health of pupils
• Create opportunities to take stock and evaluate the impact of policies and practices developed since the start of the pandemic to inform future ways of working and curriculum design.

10of 19

P
age 64



The calculation in the iTrent sickness report for schools is not working.  HR are aware of this and are working to resolve the problem.  

Resources - People 

Workforce information 

In the sickenss absence data above, from Quarter 4 there is another Early Years catergory which is not in Quarter 3.  The new area was part of a realignment of structure that was agreed by CMT in Nov and started 1st Dec 2020.  The restructure in the team is a better fit and accommodates 
extra funding that came in.
% Sickness Absence- The names of the school setting/setting type have been removed in above figure to ensure the figures relatings to a specific setting are not revealed. 

Headteacher recruitment:

• There are currently four primary school federations (8 schools in total)
• There are currently five primary school collaborations (10 schools in total)
• No secondary collaborations or federations.
• There are currently two headteacher vacancies.

% Sickness Absence 
Short 
Term 

Long 
Term

Overall 
%

Short 
Term 

Long 
Term Overall %

Primary Schools 1.25 2.24 3.50 0.74 2.19 2.93
Secondary Schools 1.64 1.29 2.93 0.52 1.25 1.77
Other 1 0.64 1.14 1.77 0.10 2.26 2.36
Other 2 2.67 2.21 4.89 1.11 2.89 4.00
Schools Total 1.44 1.87 3.31 0.66 1.89 2.55

Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Q4 Monthly Breakdown

% Sickness Absence 
Short 
Term 

Long 
Term

Overall 
%

Short 
Term 

Long 
Term Overall % Short Term Long Term

Overall 
%

Inclusion & Additional Learning Needs 0.93 0 0.93 0.35 4.16 4.51 1.02 3.98 5.00
Early Years 2.21 3.71 5.93 3.64 28.92 32.56 0 15.26 15.26
Early Years Service 0.93 0 0.93 1.20 0.32 1.52 2.28 0.86 3.14
Youth Services 1.19 1.68 2.87 0.65 1.55 2.20 1.24 1.60 2.83
School Improvement 0 2.81 2.81 0 2.78 2.78 0.60 2.77 3.37
Learning Education and Inclusion Total 0.99 2.40 3.39 0.69 2.95 3.64 1.35 2.74 4.09
Library Service 5.36 9.27 14.63 0.77 15.72 16.48 3.60 8.64 12.24
Adult Education 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ESF Project Team 1.97 0 1.97 1.04 5.15 6.19 0 4.49 4.49
Admissions and Exclusions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Admin, Data and Information 0 10.32 10.32 0 0 0 0 0 0
Education Planning & Strategy Total 3.07 5.14 8.22 0.63 9.29 9.92 1.82 5.40 7.22

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21Q3 Monthly Breakdown

% Sickness Absence 
Short 
Term 

Long 
Term

Overall 
%

Short 
Term 

Long 
Term Overall % Short Term Long Term

Overall 
%

Inclusion & Additional Learning Needs 1.95 2.07 4.02 1.29 3.35 4.64 1.05 3.27 4.32
Early Years 0.95 1.09 2.04 3.43 1.09 4.52 2.24 1.59 3.83
Youth Services 0.57 1.87 2.44 0.77 1.82 2.59 0.02 2.82 2.84
School Improvement 0.25 1.54 1.79 3.06 0 3.06 1.67 2.68 4.36
Learning Education and Inclusion Total 1.20 1.69 2.89 1.99 2.03 4.02 1.25 2.64 3.89
Library Service 0.61 6.12 6.73 1.37 7.22 8.60 1.54 7.03 8.57
Adult Education 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ESF Project Team 1.29 4.72 6.00 1.68 3.32 5.00 0.61 0 0.61
Admissions and Exclusions 8.45 5.63 14.08 0 0 0 0 0 0
Admin, Data and Information 0 14.43 14.43 0 9.73 9.73 0 10.52 10.52
Education Planning & Strategy Total 1.15 5.16 6.31 1.03 4.70 5.73 0.86 3.88 4.75

Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20

11 of 19

P
age 65



Summary Original Estimate 
2020/21

Revised Estimate 
2020/21

Anticipated Outturn 
2020/21

Anticipated Variance 
2020/21 

£000's £000's £000's Under / (Over)

Schools Related 118,513 113,167 103,097 10,070

Education 16,591 22,015 20,322 1693

Lifelong Learning 3,799 3,819 3,377 442

Home to School / 
College Transport 
(Part of 
Communities)

7,283 6,383 900

Total Service 
Expenditure 138,903 146,284 133,179 13,105

What is our People Resource and Asset Resource Information telling us for 20/21? 

The outturn position for Education, Lifelong Learning & Schools is an underspend of £13m, the largest element relates to an underspend in schools 
of £10m. 
The in year movement in school balances is an increase of £10m, increasing from £1.3m to £11.3m at the end of 2020-21. This sizable increase 
includes late grant funding from WG of circa £4.6m and some notable savings totalling circa £1m. Notably in the primary sector savings linked to 
swimming and the supply reimbursement scheme, carbon reduction across all sectors plus the ability to include additional IT spend on the 
Hardship Claim for March 2021. 

When reviewing the balances position across our schools we’re very much aware of the late grant funding that came into schools; areas of 
underspend / saving in this year’s formula allocations simply because schools didn’t have the opportunity to progress some areas of spend; schools 
with spending plans for 2020-21 that again could not be progressed due to uncertainty of this last year;
the uncertainty with regards to on-going support linked to covid (at this point we’re working on the basis that the Authority will be able to submit 
Hardship Claims to the end of September 2021). 

In view of the circumstances of this last year, it’s proposed that there will be no claw-back of excessive balances in this current financial year. This is 
supported by Officers in the Authority and will be recommended to School Budget Forum members in June. It’s recognised that some schools may 
need a little bit longer to consider the best use of some higher balances and an opportunity to meet with their Support Officer to look at future 
year projections. 

Our recommendation to School Budget Forum members is to allow schools a 2 year period to meet the recommended levels of school balances. 
This will provide schools with time to plan to ensure the best use of reserves.

The recommendation is that all schools should comply with the guidance by the end of FY 2022-23 (31.03.23). For some schools this longer period 
may not be necessary and if there are circumstances whereby a school requires longer than 24 months then this would need to be approved by 
Chief Education Officer, Director and S151 Officer. 

Resources-Finances / Assets - to be reported as part of the Authority's Outturn 

Assets 

The Council has 86 schools and 1 Pupil Referral Unit , 18 public libraries and 6 Community Education Venues (used predominantly by Youth and Adult Services). Condition surveys undertaken for all schools support the Directorate when prioritising works to be carried out from a limited 
Capital budget, £1.4 million (this excludes Welsh Government capital grant funding). The surveys show backlog maintenance for P1, P2 & P3 tasks of circa £30m.

There has been significant grant funding in recent years from WG which has been targeted at key priority areas including roofs, boilers, windows, fire risk assesment works and health and safety priorities. The works need to be planned carefully as in most cases work can only be 
undertaken during schools holidays when no learners are on site. In order to ensure timely delviery of the project additonal resources will need to be available within the building consultancy which will be funded by the grant.

This investment together with the ongoing school capital programme will significantly reduce the backlog maintenance within schools.

The in year movment in school balances has a sizable increase and includes late grant funding from WG of circa £4.6m and some notable savings totalling circa £1m. Notably in the primary sector savings linked to swimming and the supply reimbursement scheme, carbon reduction across 
all sectors plus the ability to include additional IT spend on the Hardship Claim for March 2021. 

There is more information within the resources box above.

12 of 19

P
age 66



Name of Report 
Regulator 
Proposal Regulator Proposal Action PREVIOUS UPDATE 

Service 
Officer 

Responsible 

When will 
be 

completed 
CURRENT UPDATE - May 2021 Status

Percentage 
completed

Areas for Improvement - Long term: Council has 
started to track data on outcomes for children 
and consideration is needed for tracking 
parental outcomes

1. Develop a system to link to the employability / 
legacy programmes to track parental outcomes in 
tackling poverty. 
2. Deliver training on and explore the use of the 
family resilience tool by frontline staff to track 
outcomes

1.  A joint meeting was held between Family 
Support, Legacy and Employability leads to plan 
implementation of how to track parental 
transition to employability 
programmes
2. Resilience training has been delivered across 
different target groups. Evaluations were very 
positive and next steps identified. 

Sarah Mutch 
1. March 
2020
2. July 2020

This action has been superseded by the new 
Early years model (ante natal to 7 years of age) 
linking with Caerphilly Cares and Employment 
triage teams. We are exploring WCCIS, Health 
database and Education data base and linkages 
between for tracking.  These improvements have 
been embedded in a whole system redesign.

Complete 100%

WAO Ref 
1073A2019
March 2019

Well-being of 
Future 
Generations - An 
examination of 
improving take up 
of the Flying Start 
Programme

Area for Improvement - Prevention 
* Consideration of the approach to engaging 
those parents who are not currently taking up 
or attending Flying Start.
* Consideration of the approach to re-engaging 
parents who are unable to
attend regularly

Explore the initial data form Parent Champions to 
identify parental issues during 2018/19 and consider 
how this data could be used to shape future delivery

We have collated the data but this is yet to be 
analysed. 

Sarah Mutch Mar-20

This is a whole system redesign including a 
'single point of access' for all families ante natal 
to 7 years or age, with links built into older 
children and families to ISCAN (this is children 
with additional needs) and SPACE well-being 
panel.  This action superseded, the heirarchy of 
support and parent champions are at the heart 
of that.

Complete 100%

Area for Improvement - Integration
* Consideration of how increasing take up and 
attendance could impact positively and 
negatively on the demand for, and capacity of, 
other Council
and non-Council services (both public bodies 
and voluntary sector)
* Consideration as to whether all step leads are 
fully conversant with the definition of 
Integration as set out in the Act 

1. Explore use of the resilience framework to identify 
barriers to attendance
2. Explore development of 'My Journey booklet' into 
an electronic all for families 
3. Develop case studies to show added value of 
integration of early intervention preventative services 
with statutory provision
4.  There are 4 actions relating to corporate learning 
for staff and members to embed the 5 ways of 
working 

This is in the early stages of development and 
planning prior to implementation. 

Sarah Mutch 
& Ros Roberts 

Action 1-3 - 
March 2020
Action 4. 
May 19-
March 2020

The whole system redesign has taken on 
integration with intergrated outcomes, co-
location, shared databases,integration of the 
teams and so forth. This also includes voluntary 
sector and other statutory services.

Complete 100%

Area for Improvement - Collaboration: 
Consideration of how collaborating in different 
ways may help to engage parents who are not 
taking up the Flying Start offer, for example, 
health visitors, Parent Champions.

1. Implement use of the 'My Journey booklet 
antenatal to ensure families understand the 
programme and to all delivery partners.
2. Continue development of wider collaboration work 
though Children First task group 

1. The My Journey booklet has been finalised and 
is at print run stage. 
2. Following our initial research we believe there 
is more added value to a regionalised approach to 
collaboration under early years integration and 
Children First. 

Sarah Mutch Mar-20

See above comments on the early years 
transformation model.

Complete 100%

Area for Improvement - Involvement
Development of innovative ways of reaching 
and engaging families who do not take up 
entitlement or do not consistently attend 
sessions 
Consider impact of the ‘parent champions’;
Consistent provision of feedback across all 
Council services to people who engage in 
consultations
Further exploration of how digital technologies 
could increase take up & attendance

1. Explore text remind systems for feasibility
2. Closer working between childcare and parenting 
teams for families who are struggling with 
attendance
3. Evaluate the impact of Parent Champions in the 
community. 

1. Initial research is showing the text system is 
more complex to comply with unsolicited 
marketing rules so this may take longer to 
achieve. 
2. There has been increased connection between 
childcare settings and parenting teams both 
informally as well as formally through the joint 
cluster meetings. 
3. Plans to start evaluation of Parent Champions 
in the autumn term. 

Sarah Mutch

1. August 
2019
2. August 
2019
3. March 
2020

Parent champions are embedded in the way of 
working, but the revolution is in the digital 
technologies and giving families a much wider in 
access and the right support at the right time.  
Face to face support still takes place to support 
those who are digtally excluded. 
Mifi units with chromebooks can be loaned to 
families with capabilities but no equipment or 
resource.

Complete 100%

Regulatory Proposals and update

13 of 19

P
age 67



Risk Register 2020-21

Ref
Topic and 
Service 

Mitigation actions - (What actions can we take to 
address and reduce the risk or realise the 
opportunity)

Progress Update - Input Date March 31 2021
(Are the mitigating actions reducing the risk or 
realising the opportunity?) 

Risk Level 
2019-20 

Q3

Risk Level 
2019-20 

Q4

Risk Level 
6 months 

Q2 

Risk Level 
Year End 
Q3&Q4 

FGA Risk Level

Corporate Risk Register 
CMT16 School 

Attainment
1. Utilisation of grant funding to identify gaps in pupils' 
learning and implement appropriate 
interventions/strategies.
Utilisation of the educational welfare, inclusion and Youth 
services to support pupils with issues relating to 
wellbeing.
The Edtech programme has been repurposed to provide 
digital resources to disadvantaged learners.

2. The LA monitors schools' engagement with 
professional learning activities.  Monthly LAQA meetings 
with EAS are used to update on professional learning.

UPDATE Narrative below It is impossible to identify the 
impact of mitigating factors on standards, progress 
and provision.  An evaluation of the effectiveness of 
remote learning strategies is currently being 
undertaken. Attainment levels have improved but are 
still broadly below the Welsh average.  Although there 
have been recent improvements, a gap remains 
between the attainment of Free School Meals pupils 
and Non-Free School Meals pupils.  
Higher than expected rates of exclusion will impact on 
pupil attainment and improved attendance rates have 
not been sustained over time.

High High High High

CMT42
NEW

Exit from the 
EU (Brexit)

The Directorate is participating in the Corporate Brexit 
Working Group and undertaking service specific analysis 
in preparation for the various Brexit scenarios.

The Brexit Withdrawal Agreement was signed in 
January 2020 and the transition period ended on the 
31st December 2020.  The recently agreed withdrawal 
deal has resulted in the UK leaving the EU at the end of 
December 2020.  Officers will continue to work with 
the WLGA in establishing what the recently agreed deal 
means for Welsh Local Government. 

High Medium Medium

ELL001 MTFP There are currently no significant issues with regards to 
achieving the MTFP savings proposals identified for 20-21, 
so we have revised 20-21 to a medium rating for Oct20. 
The only issue may be around the impact of additional 
cost pressures linked to covid that won’t all be funded by 
WG. That position isn’t completely clear and won’t be for 
a while yet and this may alter the rating later on. 

Budget Proposals for 2021/22 agreed by Council 24th 
February 2021. 

High High Medium Medium

ELL002 Grant Funding Liaise closely with Welsh Government and other grant 
funding bodies to ensure timely information is available 
to predict any significant changes to grant funding.  
Ensure that all terms and conditions of the grants are 
adhered to.

The Directorate has continued to maximise grant 
funding and continues to highlight ongoing issues with 
Welsh Government.  As this is stable at present it can 
be reduced to a medium risk.

High High High Medium Medium

ELL003 Behaviour and 
Exclusions

The LA is developing new and revising existing strategies 
and processes to support schools
The LA will work with schools to ensure appropriate 
intervention and provision is in place

The Inclusion compendium (and associated 
documents)  have been produced in consultation with 
an aray of stakeholders and will be considered by 
Education Scrutiny Committe in June 2021 followed by 
Cabinet for implementation from September 2021. This 
includes new guidance and processes linked to 
exclusions.
The Managed Moves protocol in place.  The Eotas 
Strategy in also place and provision outside of school is 

High High High High

Failure to identify and consult and progress savings proposals necessary to 
contribute towards Authority MTFP savings. 1. Workforce Planning: less 
staff to deliver services. 2. Failure to maintain and/or improve service 
delivery 3. Managing staff morale in light of cuts 4. Failure to take early 
decisions on which services should be cut could lead to poor planning

Medium Term

Directorate Grant Funding is circa £30m. Grant funding gives a degree of 
uncertainty for future planning purposes; 1. Annual grants may not be 
renewed posing significant risk to medium and long term financial 
planning.                                                                                    2. If external 
audit identify a failure to comply with terms and conditions, then 
potentially the grant funding body could claw back the grant funding 
previously awarded and paid which will impact significantly upon the 
Authority's budget that year.

Long-term

As the needs of children become increasingly complex there can be a 
negative impact upon exclusion rates.  It is crucial that these vulnerable 
children access appropriate and effective provision to maximise 
outcomes.  

Education Directorate Risk Register 

Risk, opportunities and Impact Does this effect the Well-being of Future 
Generations in our Communities?

1. National lockdown may have resulted in significant gaps in pupils' 
learning.  The extent to this challenge is dependent on a range of issues 
including:
- the effectiveness of remote learning strategies;
- pupils' access to digital technology from home;
- capacity for support from home. 
It is currently too early to fully assess the impact of the pandemic period 
on standards and progress of learners . 

2. A range of professional learning opportunities have been developed to 
support the implementation of remote learning.  However, this initiative is 
still at an early developmental stage.

Yes, this limits contribution to  'Prosperous 
and More Equal Wales'.  Standards of 
attainment and gaps in inequality can result 
in a low skilled, low paid workforce, and 
higher levels of unemployment leading to 
poverty.  Over the long-term (25 years) in 
the life of a young child to adult the 
potential outcome of the attainment gap 
makes this a high risk.  This is a long term risk 

Potential impacts are not yet fully 
understood but they are likely to be felt over 
the short, medium and longer-term.

The decision to leave the EU and the looming deadline to secure an exit 
deal has created considerable uncertainty.

Moving forward it is difficult to determine what impact the exit from the 
EU will have in the medium to longer-term for Caerphilly CBC and our 
communities. However, in the short-term possible negative impacts from 
a no deal scenario include the potential for workforce supply shortages in 
some areas and the possibility of some disruption to the supply of goods 
and services.     

Long-term

14 of 19

P
age 68



Risk Register 2020-21

Ref
Topic and 
Service 

Mitigation actions - (What actions can we take to 
address and reduce the risk or realise the 
opportunity)

Progress Update - Input Date March 31 2021
(Are the mitigating actions reducing the risk or 
realising the opportunity?) 

Risk Level 
2019-20 

Q3

Risk Level 
2019-20 

Q4

Risk Level 
6 months 

Q2 

Risk Level 
Year End 
Q3&Q4 

FGA Risk LevelRisk, opportunities and Impact Does this effect the Well-being of Future 
Generations in our Communities?

ELL004 School 
Buildings 

1. The ambitious 21st Century Schools programme and 
WG capital grants will significantly reduce backlog 
maintenance.   
2. Condition surveys have now been completed for all 
schools and show backlog maintenance for P1, P2 & P3 
tasks amount to £30 million. 
3. Ensure limited capital resources targets highest priority 
areas.

The Directorate is working closely with Building 
Consultancy and Health & Safety to ensure the 
Authority's limited annual school capital maintenance 
budget and grant funding targets highest priority areas. 
The 21st Century School proposals are closely 
monitored by the  School Strategy Board ensuring 
progress is on target. Following Grenfell there has been 
a greater focus on the type of build and adequate 
compartmentalisation in all fire  risk assessments. 
Significant monies have been allocated to address this 
area. Priortisation of spend will be determined by 
condition surveys. The works need to be planned 
carefully as in most cases work can only be undertaken 
during schools holidays when no learners are on site. In 
order to ensure timely delivery of the project additonal 
resources will need to be available within the building 
consultancy which will be funded by the grant.

This investment together with the ongoing school 
capital programme will significantly reduce the backlog 
maintenance within schools within the longer term.

High High High High High

ELL005 Vulnerable 
Learners

Regional and local targets for implementation monitored 
locally an regionally to ensure compliance.
Statutory posts in place by January 2021 (LA and schools).
Compatible IT systems must be developed to ensure 
digital processes are in place. 
Highlight as a budget pressure for future.
  

The LA has developed an Inclusion Strategy which  will 
be implemented from September 2021 following 
agreement from Education Scrutiny Committee. 
Developments linked to the development of provision 
and destinations is underway.  

High High High High

NEW ALN Act 1. Develop LA provision.                               
2. Increase capacity in schools by supporting with a range 
of interventions to improve wellbeing.    
3. Embed the revised managed move process.   
4. Embed collaborative working between schools.

Targets for implementation have been revised in light 
of updates by WG to the implementation plan.

Medium Medium Medium HighThe ALN Act will take effect from September 2021.  this will mean major 
change for all stakeholders.  The LA needs to ensure readiness to 
implement successfully.

A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable 
learners can improve their well-being and 
add educational achievement.                                                                                      
A more equal Wales, a society that enables 
people to fulfil their potential no matter 
what their background is.

Determine the current level of backlog maintenance in schools and 
prioritise works, working in collaboration with Health & Safety and 
Building Consultancy colleagues.

A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable 
learners can improve their well-being and 
add educational achievement. 
A more equal Wales, a society that enables 
people to fulfil their potential no matter 
what their background is.                                                           
A Wales of cohesive communities (in the 
context of improving quality of life with 
attractive, viable, safe and well connected 
communities).

Numbers of pupils identified as vulnerable have risen significantly in 
recent years and schools are increasingly challenged to offer appropriate 
provision for them.  There are examples where pupils cannot be educated 
in mainstream settings and require specific provision outside the school 
site so that their needs can be met. 1. No. of pupils requiring EOTAS 
provision is increasing.                                                                             
2. The costs of external provision have increased.     
3. High quality provision and appropriate destinations for these pupils is 
limited.                                                                               
4. Schools need to increase their capacity and collaborative working to 
ensure the managed moves protocol is implemented effectively. Suitable 
accommodation for in-house provision needs to be determined.

A healthier Wales, supporting vulnerable 
learners can improve their well-being and 
add educational achievement.                                                                            
A more equal Wales, a society that enables 
people to fulfil their potential no matter 
what their background is.

15 of 19

P
age 69



Risk Register 2020-21

Ref
Topic and 
Service 

Mitigation actions - (What actions can we take to 
address and reduce the risk or realise the 
opportunity)

Progress Update - Input Date March 31 2021
(Are the mitigating actions reducing the risk or 
realising the opportunity?) 

Risk Level 
2019-20 

Q3

Risk Level 
2019-20 

Q4

Risk Level 
6 months 

Q2 

Risk Level 
Year End 
Q3&Q4 

FGA Risk LevelRisk, opportunities and Impact Does this effect the Well-being of Future 
Generations in our Communities?

NEW HwB 
Programme

Third party support contracted with Red Cortex to 
support procurement and digital team

Work is ongoing with Welsh Government and locally to 
ensure the development of digital systems.

High High High High

NEW NEETS The data is published in April-MayNov 2021 (for NEETs 
figures measured in the previous Autumn) which will tell 
us how severe the decline may be.   

The latest reporting figure, taken in October for 2020 
shows the NEET figure as 1.7% and this equates 34 
children.  This is an improvement on the last reported 
data, so at this point the risk has not materialised due 
to the greater accessibility to potential NEET's young 
people.  This has proved greater than expected during 
the pandemic period and the repositioning of NEETS 
support and engagement has been broadly successful, 
it is anticipated that the coming summer transition 
period (post 16) will still provide challenge, given the 
significant challenges of maintaining the formal 
education contact, therefore we have reduced the risk 
rating to medium in recognition of improvement but 
potential challenges.

New New High Medium HighRisk – NEETs are young people who are not in education, employment or 
training.  This data started being recorded in 2012 when the rate was 
5.8%.  Considerable hard work went into helping young people which 
reduced the figure to as low as 1.9% in 16/17.  Currently NEETs  averages 
around 2% equating to around 40 young people. However during the 
course of this year the Authority’s NEETs target for the 2019/20 cohort of 
year 11 pupils is likely to be adversely affected as the Virus lockdown has 
restricted the breadth of contact opportunities usually available to the 
Youth Service, compounded by the closure of Schools, in the Summer 
term of 2020.  This has resulted in elevated numbers of vulnerable young 
people without confirmed post-school destinations, particularly those 
already less engaged with schools for various reasons and this may result 
in a decline in the NEETS figure.      

This is a high risk for future generations as 
starting adult life  with no or limited skills, 
qualifications or life opportunities will affect 
individual quality of life and the long term 
quality within communities

Risk – loss of funding if we do not complete full assessments of all school 
and develop sustainability plan for future investment by 31st October 
2019.  Loss of 2.9 million to CCBC schools.  Opportunities to re-establish a 
fit for purpose ICT infrastructure to schools within the borough

Yes, lack of investment in our schools could 
impact our young people's opportunity for 
good education

16 of 19

P
age 70



Financial Year Reporting 

KEY PERFORMANCE TRACKING MEASURES Outcome
Apr 17 to 
Mar 18

Apr 18 to 
Mar 19

Apr 19 to 
Mar 20

Apr 20 to 
Mar 21

Improvemen
t on last year

Increase number of eligible working parents accessing the 
childcare Offer funded places 1 467 1486 889 1263 374

Number of participants who report improved 
emotional/mental Well-being (following the programme they 
participated in)

1, 4 1683 2191 n/a n/a 508

% of participants who report improved emotional/mental Well-
being (following the programme they participated in)

1, 5 87 92 n/a n/a 5

There are no attainment indicators this year.  See the performance section in relation to 
Welsh Government instruction following Covid. 

Progress towards our Well-being Objectives 2020/21 

Progress 20/21 

Over the 5 years we are in year 3, overall how are we achieving 

What is going well

During 2020-21 many services developed online applications and delivery, which increased accessibility to children, young people and families. This is being taken 
forward as we move into increase face to face delivery to ensure families have the right support in the right way sing staff resources effectively.    
A total of 1,948 childcare placements were delivered for children aged 0-5years, through the Childcare Offer, C-CAS, Flying Start and Assisted and Supported places 
schemes. 2589 children aged 0-3years were supported in the Flying Start programme. 
Schools have moved to a blended offer of provision for all pupils, supporting IT access as well as delivering hubs to support critical workers. 
There are currently no schools placed in the category of special measures by Estyn.
The Network infrastructure installations have been completed on 86 school sites. 
The development of 21st century school environments has progressed and is on track for completion of targets by the end of this plan. 

Is there anything that is not going well?  

There is no data set for 2020-21 due to the impact of coronavirus and the changes in assessment required to mitigate this. However, we continue to provide challenge 
to schools where there is cause for concern, in order to raise standards, which is having a positive impact. 
Greater connectivity is a priority for improving digital skills for all ages in line with the development of the Ed TEch programme implementation plan, which has 
increased in priority over the last year as learners require greater IT accessibility. 
Three Welsh medium schools have currently been identified by Estyn as requiring 'significant improvement'
Over time, the number of pupil exclusions are too high.

What are we learning ? from what is going or not going well?  

It has become apparent in self evaluations during the last year that moving forward there will be the need to develop a blended offer across many service provisions. 
Schools have developed a blended offer of online and in person class learning. Many support services have also developed a range of in person and virtual support 
mechanisms, and puts an emphasis on the conversations with children, young people and families to understand their family context, barriers to engagement and is 
they are able to access support online (perhaps with use of IT loan schemes) or if they are digitally excluded and need support to use online resources or if their family 
circumstances or needs require in person support. This learning has shaped the offer from across services. 

What impact are we having? (What difference are we making?) 

During 2020-21 new partnerships and collaborations have been formed. These collaborative relationships are being built upon as we Reignite, Recover and Reform our 
services across Education. There are many examples including Early Years antenatal to 7years model, which includes midwifery, health visiting, school nursing, 
childcare, schools, early intervention teams, etc. Another example is the enhancement of collaborative working across the Employabilty programmes and the Caerphilly 
Cares team building on the buddy model, linking various teams across the council, GAVO and wider partners. 

We are having to change the way we understand the impact on attainment using external indicators like Estyn inspections and schools causing concern processes, 
which is showing a positive impact on improving standards for individual schools. Following review in spring term, one primary school was removed from 'estyn review'.  
As a result, there is currently one secondary school in 'significant improvement', two primary schools in 'significant improvement', and two schools in 'estyn review' 
(one primary, one secondary).  There are no schools in 'special measures'.

The re-purposing of the Service Improvement Plan in September 2021 demonstrates that the Local Authority is responsive to immediate challenges and needs of the 
Caerphilly community.  The impact of this work has been evidenced in Monitoring and Evaluation processes at department level and through the SIP.  This work has 
been highlighted through recent LA and national Estyn reports.

Outcomes in the Corporate Plan for objective 1. Improve Education opportunities for all.

1. Aim to reduce the impact of Poverty in the early years (connects to priority 3) 
2. Raise standards of attainment (connects to priority 1,2,3 &5) 
3. Reduce the impact of poverty on attainment for both vocational and non vocational qualifications to provide 
equality of opportunity (connects to priority 3&5) 
4 Help those who are not able to follow a traditional attainment path (connects to priority 5,6 &7)
5. Support learning that enables young and adult employment opportunities including a focus on future skills 
(this also connects to WBO 2 Enabling Employment - in Communities DPA ) and  priority 1.
6. Improve Digital Skills for all ages 
7. Improve the learning Environment (connects to priority 4) 
8. Safeguard all children and young people in order to create a climate for learning particularly those most 

17 of 19

P
age 71



To present the new priorities in the next DPA for the new reporting year.

To review the Well-being Objective and to set new evidence where available 

Completed Priority Actions From Last Quarter

CMT recognised the challenges for Education and recognition for how well they rose to the challenge.

Update

UpdateBy Whom By When

Feedback / Recognition / Actions from Corporate Management Team By Whom By When

EE Sep-21 Priorities agreed at Cabinet member workshop

Priority Actions for next Quarter (What support is needed from Corporate Management Team) By Whom By When Update

PW & KC Aug-21

Conclusions 

Progress towards our Well-being Objectives 

Highlights - what is going well

Education Directorate Performance Assessment (DPA) 6 month update went to Scrutiny for the first time in March and was well recieved.  The DPA facilitated a good range of quetions from the Eduction for Life Scrutiny.
The service have reviewed their priorities going forward within a workshop with the Cabinet Member and the new priorities are noted in the Summary.

What have we learnt, what needs improving and why? 
-

18 of 19

P
age 72



PRIORITIES

Score RAG Status

0 Black Not yet started or too early to report any progress (achievements/changes)
1 Red Started but not progressing well
2 Amber Started with reasonable progress achieved
3 Green Going well with good progress

19 of 19

P
age 73



G
adew

ir y dudalen hon yn w
ag yn fw

riadol

P
age 74


	Agenda
	3 Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg a gynhaliwyd ar 29 Mehefin 2021.
	5 Rhaglen Waith y Dyfodol Pwyllgor Craffu Addysg.
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3

	7 Dychwelyd i'r Ysgol Medi 2021 - Cyflwyniad.
	8 Rhaglen Ysgolion a Cholegau ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif Band B - Diweddariad ar Gam 2.
	9 Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol.
	10 Asesiad Perfformiad y Gyfadran – Cymunedau – Adroddiad Diwedd Blwyddyn 2020/21.
	Atodiad 1
	Homepage
	Summary & Priorities
	Performance
	Customer Intelligence
	Resources
	Regulatory
	Risk Register
	Well-being Objective1
	Conclusion
	RAG Key



